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DNEEHR
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE
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CORPORATE HIGHLIGHTS IN 2007
“EELFRTAARETE

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEARS

FERE
MAY 2007 The transaction in relation to the transfer of the entire equity interest in Beijing Jing Guan
—EELERA Property Development Co. Ltd., a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group, the 80% interest in
Beijing Xin Yang Property Development Co. Ltd. and the allotment and issue of 72,720,000
shares of Citychamp Dartong Company Limited was completed on 22 May 2007 .
EREEASE2EMNB AR R REEHEREARARZIIRAELZ - tRBEEHE
3% B R 2 B)80%#E 25 LA M it 8% ) 327772,720,000 B KB BR A BRI R HE
RZZTLFRAZFTHAZEK °
JUNE 2007 The disposal of an investment property in Hong Kong, generated profit of HK$$22,853,000
—EELEXRA for the year ended 31 December 2007.
HE_ZTTAF+_A=1+—HBILFE  HEFEREVEEE%7522,853,000 7T °
SEPTEMBER The board of Fuzhou Dartong M&E Co. Ltd., a 49% owned jointly controlled entity of the
2007 Group, increased capital by RMB36,000,000. Accordingly, the Group injected RMB17,640,000
—EELENA into Fuzhou Dartong M&E Co. Ltd.
RNEEREB49% R LR 26 E 2 E M ABEEER A AEnE AR A KK36,000,000
7T AEEREmREMN EEERRARFE ARKE17,640,0007T ©
DECEMBER Seti Timber Industry (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. and the Shenzhen Municipal Government entered
2007 into an agreement related to the land resumption on 3 December 2007.
—BBLE
+=A8 AREARECRIDERARERYMBNR_EELF T A=HT AR E A i -
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEEEEAR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

HON Kwok Lung (Chairman)

Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, aged 53, is the Chairman of the Board
of Directors of Citychamp Dartong Company Ltd. (“Citychamp
Dartong”), the shares of which are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange in the PRC. Citychamp Dartong and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in manufacturing and
sale of enamelled copper wire, high and low voltage cables
and oxygen-free copper rod and property development in the
PRC. Mr. Hon has extensive business experience in the PRC.
Mr. Hon is a member of China Overseas Chinese Committee;
Standing Committee of Jinlin Overseas Chinese Committee;
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
(“CPPCC”), Beijing; CPPCC, Hai Dian District Committee
of Beijing; and CPPCC, Fu Zhou Committee. He joined the
Board in April 2004.

WANG Shaolan (Vice Chairman)

Mr. Wang Shaolan, aged 45, holds a Bachelor degree in
Engineering from Tsinghua University and a Master degree in
Economics from Peking University. Mr. Wang was formerly
General Manager of China Township Enterprise Investment &
Development Company Limited. He joined the Board in June
2000.

SHANG Jianguang (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Shang Jianguang, aged 56, graduated in Fuzhou
University majoring in Chemistry is a qualified senior engineer
in Mainland China. Prior to joining the Group, he assumed
senior posts in various large companies, and was General
Manager and Director of Min Xin Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange.
He has extensive knowledge and experience in corporate and
investment management. He joined the Board in November
2004.

SHI Tao

Mr. Shi Tao, aged 44, holds a Bachelor degree in Engineering
from Tsinghua University and a Master degree in Engineering.
Mr. Shi has years of business experience in the PRC. He
joined the Board in April 2004.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEAER

LAM Toi Man

Mr. Lam Toi Man, aged 50, has various years of experience
in property development in the PRC. Mr. Lam has been the
General Manager of Zhejiang Huashun Real Estate Investment
Co., Ltd. In addition, he has been appointed as an Executive
Director and the General Manager of Hangzhou Yuanhua
Mart Construction Co., Ltd.. He joined the Board in April
2004. Mr. Lam is the brother-in-law of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

SIT Lai Hei

Ms. Sit Lai Hei, aged 31, graduated in Fuzhou University
taking Marketing as her major, is a qualified assistant engineer
in Mainland China. She joined the Board in November 2004.
Ms. Sit is the daughter-in-law of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung. In
addition. Ms. Sit’s husband is a nephew of Mr. Lam Toi Man.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

FUNG Tze Wa

Mr. Fung Tze Wa, aged 51, is a Certified Public Accountant
and a Director of an accounting firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Fung
has various years of experience in auditing, taxation and
company secretarial practice in Hong Kong. He obtained
a Master degree in professional accounting from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University in 2000. He is a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Chartered Association of Certified Accountants, the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong and the Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors. He joined the Board in April 2004.

KWONG Chun Wai, Michael

Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael, aged 43, is a fellow of the
International Institute of Management, a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Marketing and a member of the
Hong Kong Logistics Association. Dr. Kwong obtained a
Bachelor of arts degree with honours in philosophy from the
University of Nottingham in the United Kingdom in 1987 and
a Doctorate degree in business administration from Newport
University in the United States in 2001. Dr. Kwong is also a
certified professional marketer of the Hong Kong Institute of
Marketing. He joined the Board in April 2004.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEEEEAR

LI Qiang

Mr. Li Qiang, aged 42, holds a Master of Science degree
and a PhD of Economics degree. Since March 2004, he is a
senior consultant of Insurance Fund Management Regulatory
Department of China Insurance Regulatory Commission.
He has over 14 years of experience in the Mainland China
financial market, including banking, securities and fund
management. He joined the Board in November 2004.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

FONG Chi Wah

Mr. Fong Chi Wah, aged 45, is the Chief Financial Officer and
Secretary of the Company. Mr. Fong is an associate member
of HKICPA, a fellow member of CPA Australia, a Chartered
Financial Analyst and a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors. Mr. Fong has over 20 years of extensive experience
in various sectors of the financial industry, including direct
investment, project and structured finance, and capital
markets with focus on the PRC and Hong Kong. Mr. Fong
was a director of Baring Capital (China) Management Limited
and held various management positions in ING Bank. He
joined the Company in September 2004.

TAO Li

Mr. Tao Li, aged 55, is the Vice President of the Company, he
is also a Director and General Manager of several subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. Tao is in charge of the watch
manufacturing and distribution businesses of the Group. Mr.
Tao graduated from Beijing Foreign Trade College (currently
known as China Foreign Economy and Trade University) in
1978 is a senior economist in Mainland China. He has over
24 years of experience in business administration, marketing
and international trading. He has been working with the
Group since 1991.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT 4

EEREREEAER

YIN Weirong

Mr. YIN Weirong, aged 51, is a qualified senior economist. He
is the Vice President of the Company; he is also a Director
and a Deputy General Manager of various subsidiaries of the
Company. He was the Chief Representative of a reputable
multinational company in the PRC; and the General Manager
of a large PRC international trust and investment corporation
responsible for investment in industrial and financial projects.
Having acquired over 28 years of corporate management
developing markets in the PRC and overseas, he joined the
Company in April 2007.

XUE Mingdeng

Mr. Xue Mingdeng, aged 46, graduated from Jiangxi Finance
and Economics Institution in 1988. He holds a Bachelor
Degree in Financial Accounting and is an accountant and
economist. Mr. Xue has been the Chairman of BN EE =i
EFRZEAR AR, the Director of Nanjing Central Emporium
Co., Ltd, the Chairman of FIIKENEBZNDBRE AT and
the Financial Controller of ®Y|EgEEMEMRZX AR AT, He
has been the Executive Director and General Manager of Seti
Timber Industry (Shenzhen) Company Limited, a subsidiary of
the Company, since August 2005.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERE

OVERALL RESULTS

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), |
am pleased to announce that China Haidian Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) have achieved satisfactory performance in
2007. Revenue (continuing and discontinued operations)
decreased by HK$33,416,000 to HK$684,295,000 while net
profit attributable to equity holders of the parent company
increased by HK$405,120,000 to HK$427,467,000 in 2007.
Earnings per share increased from HK1.45 cents in 2006 to
HK23.85 cents in 2007.

MAJOR PROFIT CONTRIBUTORS

The Group’s satisfactory performance was primarily
underpinned by two factors. Firstly, the transaction in relation
to the disposal of the entire equity interest in Beijing Jing
Guan Property Development Co. Ltd. (“Jing Guan”) and the
issue and allotment of 72,720,000 shares of Citychamp
Dartong Company Limited (“Citychamp Dartong”) as
consideration was completed on 22 May 2007 (the “Asset
Transaction”). As a result of the Asset Transaction, the Group
recognized a gain on disposal of the discontinued operation
of HK$366,806,000 in the income statement in 2007. In
addition, dividend income of HK$48,383,000 was received
from Citychamp Dartong which consisted of the dividend
income from 6,079,392 bonus shares of HK$47,632,000
and a cash dividend of HK$751,000. A fair value gain of
HK$241,797,000 for the revaluation of shares of Citychamp
Dartong as at 31 December 2007 was recognised in the
investment revaluation reserve. Secondly, EBOHR Luxuries
International Company Limited (“EBOHR”) achieved growth
in operating profit and net profit after tax as a result of the
expanded product lines and markets. Newly developed
product lines include expensive metal luxurious watches with
new markets being developed in PRC institutional sales and
export sales.

REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS

The Group is currently identifying and appraising a number
of potential real estate development opportunities, especially
commercial real estate in the southern part of the Mainland
China. The real estate development business will be the main
revenue and profit driver for the Group in the near future.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERE

WATCHES AND TIMEPIECES BUSINESS
Revenue from expensive metal luxurious watches will flow
into the Group in 2008.

ENAMELLED COPPER WIRES BUSINESS

During the year under review, additional capital contributions
of HK$18,186,000 were injected into Fuzhou Dartong M&E
Co. Ltd., a jointly controlled entity, by the Group. Such
capital contributions will provide additional working capital for
the expanded production capacity of those entities.

PROSPECTS

The pace of economic growth of the Mainland China is
expected to remain buoyant in 2008, primarily driven by
business investment and net exports. It appears likely that
the policymakers would apply macroeconomic measures
to cool the economy by curbing inflation and alleviating
disruptions. Investment growth will remain robust. However,
exports to the US may slowdown, which would be more than
offset by China’s sustained export penetration to other key
regions. Domestic consumption should continue to proliferate
commensurable with escalating income and wealth.

Owing to the burgeoning growth in investment, consumption
and wealth in Mainland China, we believe that the
performance of real estate development, watches and
timepieces and enamelled copper wire businesses will
continue to flourish in the near future.

While Citychamp Dartong and EBOHR will be the recurring
sources of profit and funds for working capital, sales
proceeds from the land owned by Seti Timber Industry
(Shenzhen) Company Limited (“Seti Timber”) will provide a
one-off source of profit and funds for investment.

The Group has been evaluating investment opportunities
in property development; developing the watches and
timepieces business; and expanding the enamelled copper
wire business. Leveraging on the substantial experience, the
Group will continue to make investments with prudence in
those businesses, in particular, the commercial real estate
development in the southern part of the Mainland China, with
an aim to maximize shareholders’ value and sustain long-term
development. At the same time, the Group strives to further
strengthen corporate governance and internal control.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERE®E

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
heartfelt gratitude to our business partners, customers and
shareholders. In addition, | would like to take this opportunity
to thank all our staff members for their valuable contribution
during the past year.

Hon Kwok Lung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 April 2008
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWE TN

REVIEW OF RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Group’s
revenue (continuing and discontinued operations) amounted
to HK$684,295,000, a decrease of HK$33,416,000 over
the last year. Gross profit increased by HK$27,464,000 to
HK$109,888,000 while net profit attributable to equity holders
of the parent company increased by HK$405,120,000 to
HK$427,467,000. Earmnings per share increased from HK1.45
cents in 2006 to HK23.85 cents in 2007.

(1)

12

Investment in Citychamp Dartong

The transaction in relation to the disposal of the
entire equity interest in Beijing Jing Guan Property
Development Co. Ltd. (“Jing Guan”), a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Group, the 80% interest in Beijing
Xin Yang Property Development Co. Ltd. (“Xin Yang”)
and the issue and allotment of 72,720,000 shares of
Citychamp Dartong Company Limited (“Citychamp
Dartong”) as consideration was completed on 22 May
2007 (“the Asset Transaction”). As a result of the Asset
Transaction, the Group recognised a gain on disposal
of the discontinued operation of HK$366,806,000 in
the income statement for the year ended 31 December
2007.

The Group’s initial investments of 72,720,000 shares
and the bonus shares of 6,079,392 in Citychamp
Dartong was revalued to HK$853,380,000 as
at 31 December 2007 and a fair value gain of
HK$241,797,000 was recognied in the investment
revaluation reserve as at 31 December 2007. During
the year under review, the Group recorded dividend
income of HK$48,383,000 from Citychamp Dartong
which consisted of the dividend income from 6,079,392
bonus shares of HK$47,632,000 and a cash dividend of
HK$751,000.

As at 31 December 2007, the Group has appraised
the fair value of its holding of 72,720,000 shares and
6,079,392 bonus shares of Citychamp Dartong with
reference to various parameters including, inter alia,
historical price volatility, closing price on 31 December
2007 and the time prior to expiry of the lock-up period
as on 22 May 2010.

&R E
HE_ZT+F+-_A=1+—HItFE  A&EH
REBELEEBRERELEEBHKRAR
684,295,000 7T+ B _EFE T 33,416,000/
JC ° F F 18 1127,464,000 7% T & 109,888,000 7
JC - A RIRERERFA A BG4 RIE 51405,120,000
HBILE427,467,00087C - BRAF AR =T Z X
F1.4580\ EAZE =TT +F23.85%8l -

(1) REEKBEHRE
EFRHEAEE2EWB AR R REEH
ERZBARAR(IRE]) 28k A% - b
REGEHMEREBRAR([EE])80%
7 DA I 3 77 K Bd B 72,720,000 % 78 35 K
BROBRAR(TEHRARE]) ROIEAER
BHRSGEN - ZEE+LFRA-_+-_HEKX
(EEXRZ]) BRETEERS A&
EEREBE—_ZET+tF+-A=+—HLHF
EHEZREREIEERIECEEB 2
366,806,0007 JT °

K &= B R E W K& 72,720,000 A% B 7 &
6,079,322 AP IR ER_TZTLF
+ZA=+—HKMEMH{EEA853,380,000/%
L WRZEELF+ A=+ —HHKRE
BARBERERA T ERZE241,797,0008 7T °
REBEFE - ANEE 5 H A3 RER S U
A48,383,000/ 7T © EH BIEKRE6,079,392
RS 4T P /9 RS B U A 47,632,00058 7T & 3R & IR
B.751,000/%8 7T °

RZBETE+E+-A=1+—8  xEBERE
(B BE)BEREEY  RZZZLF
FTZ A=+ BNUTEREREHN T
—EFRA-_t_HERSEZERZ 7
iy H R T 39 K 38 BT # 72,720,000 % B% 19 &
6,079,392 AT & By X F1E o

China Haidian Holdings Limited HEZREBEHR2A T



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWmE TN

Annual Report 2007

On 28 February 2008, Citychamp Dartong announced
its results under PRC GAAP for the year ended 31
December 2007. Earnings per share for the year was
RMB 0.4, an increase of 54% over last year.

The annual dividends of Citychamp Dartong will provide
a recurring source of profit contribution as well as funds
for working capital.

Termination of timber plant in Shenzhen

Seti Timber and the Shenzhen Municipal Government
entered into an agreement on 3 December 2007,
pursuant to which, the Shenzhen Municipal Government
will (1) resume the land granted to Seti Timber, retain
50% of the land area and arrange for the remaining 50%
of the land area to be sold at an auction; (2) compensate
Seti Timber for the land resumption by paying Seti
Timber 89.5% of the proceeds from the sale of 50% of
the land area; (3) change the land use from industrial to
residential and commercial for the portion of land to be
auctioned. Based on the revised land use of the portion
of land to be auctioned, an independent valuer estimated
a value of RMB700 million.

Upon completion of the land resumption, Seti Timber
will cease to own the land. The gain expected to accrue
to Seti Timber is 89.5% of the proceeds from the sale
of 50% of the land area minus the net asset value of
the land and the relevant land restoration costs. As
the auction is not expected to be executed until the
second quarter of 2008, the one-off gain from the land
resumption will be fully reflected in the 2008 accounts.

Watches and timepieces business

EBOHR, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
achieved satisfactory result in 2007. Revenue was
HK$165,327,000, an increase of HK$34,969,000, or
27%, over HK$130,358,000 in 2006, contributing net
profit of approximately HK$31,419,000 to the Group.
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During 2007, EBOHR participated and implemented
a number of unique marketing activities to promote
the brand name. The growth of EBOHR was mainly
attributable to the innovative product designs, emerging
brand recognition, and strong sales network and
market development. As at the end of December 2007,
there were 25 sales offices in key cities, approximately
300 distribution points and 300 authorized dealers all
over the PRC. In 2007, institutional sales and exports
accounted for 20% and 1% of total sales respectively.

Enamelled copper wires business

Fuzhou Dartong M&E Co. Ltd. (“Fuzhou Dartong”),
a 49% owned jointly controlled entity of the Group
contributed revenue and net loss after tax of
approximately HK$406,482,000 and HK$705,000
respectively in 2007. Increase in revenue was in line with
the expanded production capacity and the established
brand reputation.

Jiangsu Dartong M&E Co. Ltd. (“Jiangsu Dartong”), a
25% owned associated company of the Group recorded
contributions of approximately HK$2,212,000 in 2007.

Property investment

The factory complex in Dongguan, the property on Yan
He South Road, Luohu District, Shenzhen, three shop
units on Xianghua Road, Zhuhai, all in Guangdong
Province of the PRC, and one apartment in Hong Kong
owned by the Group have been leased out, with stable
rental returns to the Group for the year under review.

The disposal of the investment property in Hong Kong
generated profit of HK$22,853,000 for the year ended
31 December 2007.
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FINANCIAL POSITION

(1)

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure
As at 31 December 2007, the Group had non-
pledged cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$82,362,000 (31 December 2006: HK$234,616,000).
Based on the bank loans of HK$112,815,000 (31
December 2006: HK$501,701,000) and shareholders’
equity of HK$1,213,374,000 (31 December 2006:
HK$537,935,000), the Group’s gearing ratio (being loans
divided by shareholders’ equity) was 9% (31 December
2006: 93%).

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s bank loans
amounting to HK$112,815,000 (all bank loans) were
repayable within one year.

Charge on assets

()  Other banking facilities of the Company were
secured by the Group’s investment properties in
Tai Hang Road, Hong Kong with a net book values
amounting to approximately HK$12,832,000 as at
31 December 2007.

(i) Bank loans of HK$26,596,000 and other banking
facilities of Seti Timber were secured by land
and buildings in Nanshan District, Shenzhen, the
PRC, owned by the Group with a net book value
amounting to approximately HK$128,607,000 as at
31 December 2007.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had capital
commitment of approximately of HK$13,934,000 for the
purchase of property, plant and equipment.

Contingent liabilities
The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at the
balance sheet date.

OUTLOOK

The buoyant of economic growth of the Mainland China in the
next few years will augur well for our real estate development,
watches and timepieces, enamelled copper wires and real
estate investment segments.
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With a sizable land bank in different cities in China, the
performance of Citychamp Dartong will flourish and herald
significant contribution to the Group in the years to come.
Besides, potential real estate development projects currently
be identified by the Group will also help drive the long term
growth of the Group.

Leveraging on its premier market position and comprehensive
sales network, EBOHR has generated increasingly strong
revenue and profit by addressing the huge demand for
premium products in China. Similarly, Fuzhou Dartong and
Jiangsu Dartong have managed to attract more leading local
and multinational customers, who are important for the long
term profitability.

Recurring profit of the Group will increase gradually driven
by the increasing dividends from Citychamp Dartong and the
sustained growth of EBOHR, Fuzhou Dartong and Jiangsu
Dartong. Increasingly strong profit will be generated from the
real estate development business in the near future.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had approximately 1,000
full-time staff in Hong Kong and the PRC. The remuneration
packages offered to the employees were determined and
reviewed on an arm’s length basis with reference to the
market conditions and individual performance. The Group
also provides other benefits to its employees, including year-
end double pay, medical insurance and retirement benefits,
and incentive bonus are offered with reference to the Group’s
operating results and employees’ individual performance.
All employees of the Group in Hong Kong have joined the
provident fund schemes.

APPRECIATION

The Group’s impressive performance in the past year was the
result of dedicated work by the management and its staff.
| would like to take this opportunity to express our sincere
gratitude to our employees, customers, bankers, professional
consultants and shareholders for their unfailing support.

Shang Jianguang
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 17 April 2008
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintain a standard of
corporate governance that is consistent with market
practices.

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
all the applicable code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Government Practices (“Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) for the year
ended 31 December 2007 except for code provision E.1.2.
Code provision 1.2 stipulates that the Chairman of the board
of directors should attend the annual general meeting. The
Chairman of the board of directors will endeavor to attend
all future annual general meetings of the Company unless
unexpected or special circumstances preventing him from
doing so. The Board will continuously review and improve
the corporate governance practices and standards of the
Company to ensure that business activities and decision-
making processes are properly regulated.

The following summarizes the Company’s key corporate
governance practices.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”)
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code
of conducts for securities transactions by directors of the
Company. All the members of the board have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2007.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The principal focus of the board is on the overall strategic
development and direction of the Group. The board
also monitors the financial performance and the internal
controls of the Group’s business operations. The board has
established a clear segregation of duties and responsibilities
between the board and the management as to which types
of decisions are to be taken by the board and which are to
be delegated to management. This segregation of duties and
responsibilities will be regularly reviewed by the board.

Annual Report 2007 —ZEZFFf
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The board comprises of five Executive Directors (one of whom
is the Chairman and the other of whom is the Chief Executive
Officer), one Non-executive Director and three Independent
Non-executive Directors. In addition, one of the Independent
Non-executive Directors possesses appropriate professional
accounting qualifications and financial management expertise.
Profiles of directors are set out in the pages 5 to 7 of the
Annual Report.

With a wide range of expertise and a balance of skills, the
Non-executive Directors bring independent judgment on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability,
resources, key appointments and standards of conduct
through their participating in board meetings and committee
work.

The views of the independent Non-executive Directors carry
significant weight in the board’s decision-making process.
The board considers that each Independent Non-Executive
director is independent in character and judgment and that
they all meet the specific independence criteria as required
by the Listing Rules. The Company has received from each
Independent Non-executive Director an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Company still considers such directors to be
independent. The Independent Non-executive Directors are
explicitly identified in all corporate communications.

The board meets regularly throughout the year to review
the overall strategy, discuss business opportunities and to
monitor the operation as well as the financial performance of
the Group. With the assistance of the Company Secretary,
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are primarily
responsible for drawing up and approving the agenda
for each board meeting in consultation with all directors.
Notice of at least 14 days have been given to all directors
for all regular board meetings and the directors can include
matters for discussion in the agenda if necessary. Agenda
and accompanying board papers in respect of regular board
meetings are sent out in full to all directors within reasonable
time prior to confirmation.

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board
committees are kept by duly appointed secretaries of the
respective meetings and all directors have access to board
papers and related materials, and are promptly provided with
adequate information, which enable the board to make an
informed decision on matters placed before it.
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Save as mentioned below, there is no relationship among
members of the board:

()  Mr. Lam Toi Man (Executive Director) is the brother-in-
law of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung (Chairman of the board).

(i) Ms. Sit Lai Hei (Non-executive Director) is the daughter-
in-law of Mr. Hon Kwok Lung and Ms. Sit’s husband is a
nephew of Mr. Lam Toi Man.

During the year, five board meetings were held and the
individual attendance of each director is set out below:

BRI PSS - EE K 8 R EERRE:

) BTEEMRAXEEREZTSIFEERSL
EHEE -

(i) FFRTEFERELTIR/BEBELENS
- R R T H SRR AR T AR I
% o

FA ARAAHBTAREESER  ANES
ZHEERETIT:

Number of board

meetings attended Attendance rate

Name of director = HEEEESBNH R
HON Kwok Lung EEEEE 4/5 80%
WANG Shaolan TLB 4/5 80%
SHANG Jianguang P 5/5 100%
SHI Tao hE 3/5 60%
LAM Toi Man MR X 3/5 60%
SIT Lai Hei EE 2R 3/5 60%
FUNG Tze Wa T 5/5 100%
KWONG Chun Wai, Michael BRE (2 4/5 80%
LI Qiang o 5/5 100%
Re-election of Directors H5REE

Each of the directors is appointed for a specific term and is K EFHIRIETTHESZT B EESFARTE
subject to the rotation provision of the Company’s Articles of 2B EBAHBESENIKENY BV B =FEF

Association and shall retire at least once every three years.

Pursuant to the existing Articles of Association of the
Company, at every annual general meeting, one-third of
the directors for the time being or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not greater
than one-third shall retire from office. Besides, the Company
will ensure full compliance with the Code provision that every
director should be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years.

Remuneration Committee

Members of the Remuneration Committee are Mr. Fung Tze
Wa (Committee Chairman), Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael,
Mr. Li Qiang, Mr. Hon Kwok Lung and Mr. Shang Jianguang.
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The majority of the Remuneration Committee members are
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee recommends the board on the Group’s overall
policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and
senior management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee ensures that no
director or any of his/her associates is involved in deciding
his/her own remuneration. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee were adopted are consistent with
the requirements of the Code.

The Remuneration Committee has met once on 31 August
2007 to review the main elements of the Company’s
remuneration policy for directors and senior management,
and to review and approve the specific remuneration
packages of all directors and senior management.

During the year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was
held. The individual attendance of each member is set out
below:

FTHEZEEAZHXNEYRBIUIFRITES -
HWEEENAKEMEEZREREEABHTH
BV EEBIUR M A8 - AN BL I E B B B SR AL IE
BRMEBRAERF  REFTSRLES - FME
BEEARREFTHETABRALHIGLEE
EEAGHM - FMEESCHRMETAREE
BT EEBEEE -

FHEZEEERN_TTLF/\A=1T—HBTE
& MR ARAREERSMEEABFMHER
MEIEAR UEHNIBEEZBEZTLNSREE
AEWARBHMES -

FR-FHEZESE RE% - ERIKE R

DERIT— NG
HEREHIT:

Number of

meetings attended Attendance rate
Name of director BEEHS HESERE HE =R
FUNG Tze Wa BT 1/1 100%
KWONG Chun Wai, Michael B &R 01 0%
LI Qiang £ 1/1 100%
HON Kwok Lung FREBE 1/1 100%
SHANG Jianguang P 1/1 100%

Nomination of Directors

The Company currently does not have a nomination
committee. The Company will consider setting up one at the
appropriate time.

Audit Committee

Members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Fung Tze Wa
(Committee Chairman), Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael and
Mr. Li Qiang.

The composition and members of the Audit Committee
complies with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules. The written terms of reference which describe the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee were adopted
in 1999 and subsequently revised on 23 August 2005 to
conform to the provisions of the Code.
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During the year under review, the Audit Committee has met
four times to review the reporting of financial (including interim
and annual results) and other information to shareholders, the
system of internal controls, risk management, effectiveness
and objectivity of the audit process and perform other duties
set out in this terms of reference. Members of the Audit
Committee visited subsidiaries and associates of the Group
and enquired about and comment on the matters related to
system of internal controls and risk management of those
subsidiaries. They also reviewed and commented internal
audit reports of subsidiaries and associates.

The Audit Committee reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting
matters including a review of the accounts for the year ended
31 December 2007.

During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held
and the individual attendance of each member is set out
below:

CEFERN  BRZEGHABTORER  UE
etk FRERENTHREZBRRRE
HEOEMER  ABEEHE  BAREE &2
T2 R OB ER 2R B 1 DA I PR 1T B AR 6 B P 8 A E
i -  BEREZBEREBECREAKENNE R
AIRBERT  YERAZEHERRNARREEE
HERERERESHBEEHELELTE - FEEZ
BeX B RFENBRRMEERTNA
AREAZ R

BEMAAKERAN ST

BERREGCRREE

AINED  URmARERERVERBEE B
REHNHEZE _TTLF T _A=T—RHILFER
B e

LRITMAE @ ERIKER

FR - BREZEEH
R

Number of
meetings attended Attendance rate
Name of director EEgE HESRRE HER
FUNG Tze Wa T 2/2 100%
KWONG Chun Wai, Michael BB 2/2 100%
LI Qiang g 2/2 100%

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the Company has
paid an audit fee of HK$1,200,000 in relation to the audit
services for the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2007. The audit fee was approved by the Audit
Committee and endorsed by the Board.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The board has overall responsibility for maintaining an
adequate system of internal controls of the Company and
for reviewing its effectiveness. The board is committed
to implementing an effective and sound internal controls
system to safeguard the interest of shareholders and the
Group’s assets. The board has delegated to management
the implementation of the system of internal controls and
reviewing of all relevant financial, operational, compliance
controls and risk management function within an established
framework and reporting to the board and Audit Committee
on its material findings.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for the preparation of accounts
for each financial period which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow
for that period. In preparing the accounts for the year ended
31 December 2007, the directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently; adopted
appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
and Hong Kong Accounting Standards; made adjustments
and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and have
prepared the accounts on the going concern basis. The
directors are also responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP AND COMMUNICATION

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communicating with shareholders and the
investment community at large. In order to ensure effective,
clear and accurate communications with the shareholders
and investors, all corporate communications are arranged
and handled by the Executive Directors and designated
senior executives according to established practices and
procedures of the Company.
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The Company has announced its annual results and interim
results in a timely manner during the year under review,
which is within the time limits set out in the Listing Rules.
Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings
on each substantially separate issue, including the re-election
of individual directors. In addition, procedures for demanding
a poll are included in the circular to shareholders dispatched
together with the annual report.

The Company has also maintained websites at www.irasia.com/
listco/hk/chinahaidian and www.chinahaidian.com which
enable shareholders, investors and the general public to
have access to the information of the Company on a timely
basis. Financial information and all shareholder corporate
communications of the Company are made available on the
Company’s website and updated regularly.

Shareholders who wish to raise any queries with the board
may write to the Company Secretary at Unit 1902-04, Level
19, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 21 to the financial statements. There were
no significant changes to the Group’s principal activities
during the year except for manufacture and distribution of
timber products and property development, which were
presented as discontinued operations during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2007
and the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at
that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 34
to 137.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2007.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and
minority interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the audited financial statements, is set out
on pages 138 and 139. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment,
and investment properties of the Company and of the Group
during the year are set out in notes 17 and 18 to the financial
statements, respectively. Further details of the Group’s
investment properties are set out on pages 140 of the annual
report.
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SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
are set out in note 38 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
of the Group during the year are set out in note 40 to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2007, the Company had reserves of
available HK$743,053,000 for cash distribution and/or
distribution in specie.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for less than 18% of the total sales for
the year. Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for 15% of the total purchases.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers or the five largest suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, Chairman

Mr. Wang Shaolan, Vice Chairman

Mr. Shang Jianguang, Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Shi Tao

Mr. Lam Toi Man

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Sit Lai Hei

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Fung Tze Wa

Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael

Mr. Li Qiang

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Wang Shaolan, Mr. Shang Jianguang and
Mr. Lam Toi Man will retire by rotation and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the three Independent Non-
executive Directors, Mr. Fung Tze Wa, Dr. Kwong Chun
Wai, Michael and Mr. Li Qiang that they have met all the
factors concerning their independence as set out in Rule
3.18 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and that there are no other factors which may affect
their independence. The Company’s board of directors
(the “Board”) considers these Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 5 to 8
of the annual report.

EE
U TNRARBAFEHEIZESE

BTES
BEELELE(ZE)
FLOMELEFETE)
BRI (TTEAREL)
aERE

MR A

HHITES
RSt

BAFITES
HFERE
BEREBL
FREE

REBEANRBAREHSRAREI6HRIRTE - T
PRKLE BRI EE RMR T AR EE K
REFASRERESE  YHATSERER
BIE o

ARAREER=BBUIATEST B FERLE
BEEEIRFREARBBEHZFERBLER
T RTIRECNEEBBRARIMARRAAZE
FH EmRRN(T ERRI)E3A3MGHEBREEL
FomMBERE  URUEREMAESEERSE
BIGOWEER - ARAEEE([EFE )R
R RZRBEGFRATESTHREIAL -

EEREEEBABCERE
ARRAEFRAKBBETEALZBERHER
RNEREEEHLH -

26 China Haidian Holdings Limited 1 EEREBREREA T



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Shang Jianguang, an Executive Director and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, has a service contract with
the Company for a term of two years commencing from 18
November 2006 and is subject to termination by either party
by giving not less than three month’s written notice.

Mr. Hon Kwok Lung, the Chairman of the Company, Mr.
Shi Tao, and Mr. Lam Toi Man, Executive Directors of the
Company, have service contracts with the Company for an
initial term of two years commencing from 1 July 2004 and is
subject to termination by either party by giving not less than
two months written notice. These service contracts will each
continue for successive terms of one year unless terminated
by not less than two months written notice served by either
party to the other.

Mr. Fung Tze Wa and Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael,
Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company, have
service contracts with the Company for an initial term of
two years commencing from 3 May 2004. These service
contracts will each continue for successive terms of one year
unless terminated by not less than one month’s written notice
served by either party to the other.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees can be fixed by the directors of the
Company and are subject to shareholders’ authorisation
at general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by
the Board with reference to the duties, responsibilities and
performance of the directors and the results of the Group.

Annual Report 2007 —ZEZFFf

BEERNENh 2R

FA - ZEEMERARFRXEEFMNBELFLZ
HIVMBAREXEBERN 2 EMANPTER
K EEEE A EARERS -

EERBEL
ARBRTEERITRAHBEN S EEARRF
AAERBAH  EFHH_ZEERF+—A+NH
EABRME  EEFA—SARES - HELETIR
AR EMBARIZRTAL -

ARREFEEELLE  ARFATEEALRE
ERMKRXEERRRBTAEREEL - NIHE
PH_ZTENFLA - HESHAMF - HERM—
AAAR—HELANDRMELEEEMNT AL
e BRFEEN—FRAS—FTELETDRMEARE
EBATALILE - W ERBEHBEEAR - I
HIgGRBEH—F o

RARBUFPTERS FELERBEEBL
BEARBTARBEL VS EHH-_FTTN
FAA=ZRERPME - RIFEEM—HRAR—7
BHETLOR—EAEMAM T AL - WERE
BRREERN  LTHREREH—F -

MEZFNEERRAFAGEEEC EFTHE
ARBABEERARRAAE-FRABAIE
BORERERIN MR IEZREEL -

EEME

EXNeTHARRESERE  HEABBERNK
RASHE - HthHFMAEETEL2EEE 2R
% BEEMKRBEARASEREETE -

27



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 31 December 2007, the interests or short positions
of the directors and chief executive in the share capital
and underlying shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) of the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company:

EERFETRAERRORERRD 2%
95879

RZZEZLF+-_A=+—H  BAQFREE
FREAEEG ([ FHRBEGED ) E352(6REF
EERMARE  EEREZITHRAERAR
RISEMAEEE(TE REFRBEEFIEXVED)
ZBRARABBRDPER 2 EERAR KR
EWRAET EMBITAESETELFRRZMIZ
EFA(MZEFR D MERARAREBHERS
FTER AR ([BRFT]) zEsssA T ¢

Percentage of
the Company’s

Capacity and Number of issued share

nature of ordinary capital

interest shares held o NN

BoR FFERER EBRITRA

Name of director EENR EatE BHE Bok

Mr. Hon Kwok Lung B A Through a controlled 673,737,515 37.60
corporation (Note)
FHRE AR (B3E)

Note:

The 673,737,515 shares of the Company are held by Sincere View
International Limited (“Sincere View”), which is owned as to 80%
and 20% by Mr. Hon Kwok Lung and his wife, Ms. Lam Suk Ying,
respectively.

Mr. Hon Kwok Lung and Ms. Lam Suk Ying are deemed to have an
interest in the same parcel of shares of 673,737,515 held by Sincere
View.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, no person had
registered an interest or short position in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any director or their respective spouse
or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 December 2007, the following interests of 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long position:

EESRERODIEZ ZER
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HR:

Percentage of
the Company’s

Capacity and Number of issued share

nature of ordinary capital

interest shares held PN

S5k FEHEER BETRAE

Name of director EEEB EEME #H Batk

Sincere View International E2BEEER AR Directly beneficially 673,737,515 37.60
Limited owned
BEEE=EA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, no
person, other than the directors and chief executive of the
Company, whose interests are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ and chief executive’s interests and short positions
in shares and underlying shares” above, had registered an
interest or short position in shares and underlying shares of
the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTION
During the year, there is no connected transaction of the
Group under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year, no director is considered to have an interest
in a business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group
pursuant to the Listing Rules, other than those businesses to
which the directors were appointed as directors to represent
the interest of the Company and/or the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the
Company’s shares which are in the hands of the public
exceeded 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital as
at the date of this report.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In the opinion of the directors, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with the code provisions in the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the accounting
year covered by the annual report, except for the deviations
from code provision E.1.2 of the Code as explained in the
Company’s interim report for the period ended 30 June 2007.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Board adopted the Model Code as the Company’s
code of conduct for dealings in securities of the Company
by the directors. Having made specific enquiry with all the
Company’s directors, the Company has ascertained that all
of its directors have complied with the required standards
set out in the Model Code throughout the accounting year
covered by this annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) on 23 August 2005 in
compliance with the Listing Rules, terms of reference of
which have been adopted by the Board of the Company
are consistent with the requirements of the Code. The
Remuneration Committee currently comprises the three
Independent Non-executive Directors, Mr. Fung Tze Wa (the
Chairman of the Committee), Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael
and Mr. Li Qiang, the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Hon Kwok
Lung and the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Shang Jianguang.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was established
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the
purpose of reviewing and providing supervision over the
Group’s financial reporting process and internal controls.
The audit committee comprises the three Independent Non-
executive Directors of the Company. The audit committee
has reviewed with management the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and discussed auditing,
internal control and financial matters including the review
of the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2007.

AUDITORS

In January 2007, Ernst & Young resigned as auditors of
the Company and Grant Thornton were appointed by the
directors to fill the causal vacancy so arising. There have
been no other changes of auditors in the past three years.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Grant Thornton as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Hon Kwok Lung
Chairman

Hong Kong
17 April 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

B 2B RS

GrantThornton
HE

To the members of China Haidian Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Haidian Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, “the Group”) set out on pages 34 to
137, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2007, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd
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B M AR

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2007 and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton

Certified Public Accountants
13th Floor, Gloucester Tower
The Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

17 April 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

MEBmEE

For the year ended 31 December 2007

BE-TTLE-AS+—HILER

2007 2006
—ETtE —TTRF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BisE THExT FHET
(Restated)
(E71)
Continuing operations: BESEEL !
Revenue WA 6 576,058 330,774
Cost of sales SHERAR (468,903) (251,462)
Gross profit E] 107,155 79,312
Other income HAKA 7 14,637 9,759
Selling and distribution expenses HE RO A (54,708) (45,602)
Administrative expenses THE A (65,910) (51,906)
Gain on fair value changes in RANEERT ASE
financial assets at fair value BEzeREEATE
through profit or loss, net )7 WS R 24,629 38,589
Net surplus on revaluation of RENMEEHRHPFE
investment properties 18 10,178 22,031
Dividend income from HELRHEEY
available-for-sale financial assets e B U A 25 48,383 -
Gain on disposal of an investment HE—BREMERE
property 18 22,853 -
Other operating income, net Higg g A58 4,614 3,473
Operating profit LR 111,831 55,656
Financial income BB 7 1,923 1,690
Finance costs HBER 8 (7,157) (2,880)
Share of results of an associate FEE—REE A TS 24 2,212 5,028
Profit before income tax BRFT BB ANREF 9 108,809 59,494
Income tax expense FTi8Rip = 10 (7,168) (7,815)
Profit after income tax from S ¥ S
continuing operations BRFTS &R T 101,641 51,679
Discontinued operations: CRIEEEEK .
Profit/(Loss) for the year from BRI EER
discontinued operations RNEEHEHN (B18) 11 325,566 (29,612)
Profit for the year KEERF 427,207 22,067
Attributable to: AN AL
Equity holders of the Company RAREREEA 12 427,467 22,347
Minority interest DER R R (260) (280)
Profit for the year REERF 427,207 22,067
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mER@R

For the year ended 31 December 2007

BE-TTLE-AS+—HILER

Notes 2007
BE =25 o -3
(Restated)
(&51)
Earnings per share from continuing KAREEREA
operations attributable to equity EhEBESEER
holders of the Company ZEBREF 14
Basic HAR HK cents 5.67 &1L HK cents 3.347& 1
Diluted g N/ARiE B N/ATiE A
Earnings/(Loss) per share from AATEZEEA
discontinued operations attributable EEERLEREEK
to equity holders of the Company ZEBRER, (&H#E) 14

Basic

Diluted

Annual Report 2007

YN

HK cents 18.183&1l

(HK cents 1.897%1lL1)

N/ATER

N/ATE B
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

hEEERER

As at 31 December 2007 R-EE+F+-F=+—H

2007 2006
—EZtHF ZERRF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M5 FET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M MENEE 17 125,394 200,684
Investment properties "EYHE 18 60,258 159,748
Prepaid land lease payments BT HAERE 19 10,227 46,545
Interests in associate PGBt A Rl 24 31,484 29,272
Available-for-sale financial assets AIHEESREE 25 853,380 -
Prepayments and deposits ERFERE® 26 2,394 41,982
Deferred tax assets R IEE E 36 1,130 1,062
1,084,267 479,293
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 27 142,026 114,424
Trade and bills receivables TEWNBE N R E 4 28 44,052 90,937
Prepaid land lease payments FER A EFIR 19 210 3,764
Prepayments, deposits and FERRE - - ZEk
other receivables H i fE U X 26 87,277 33,391
Financial assets at fair value AT EF AR T
through profit or loss BEseRmEE 29 44,178 48,765
Pledged deposits [REFELFES 30 = 4,892
Cash and cash equivalents WERIREEEBY 30 82,362 39,836
400,105 336,009
Non-current assets held for sale BIEHEZIEREEE 11 200,989 -
Assets in disposal group classified NEABIELHEZ
as held for sale HEHREE 11 - 1,262,408
601,094 1,598,417
Current liabilities REAE
Trade payables FERTERRX 31 33,497 46,683
Deposits received from customers BEWEPES - 1,613
Other payables and accruals HibENT REASER 32 95,767 58,623
Tax payables e A5 I8 13,188 9,597
Derivative financial instruments PTEemITA 33 5,017 -
Borrowings ER= 34 112,815 116,353
Due to related companies FEN B BENRIRR 35 209,311 180,000
469,595 412,869
Liabilities in disposal group DEABELEZ
classified as held for sale HEHRABBE 11 - 1,038,855
469,595 1,451,724
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SEEERER

As at 31 December 2007 R-EE+F+-_F=+—H

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M5 F#&xT FHET
Net current assets REBEEFRE 131,499 146,693
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARS 1,215,766 625,986
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings BE 34 - 55,348
- 55,348
Net assets EEFHE 1,215,766 570,638
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to equity EATEZEEA
holders of the Company Eihs
Share capital R& 2N 38 179,203 179,203
Reserves B 40 1,034,171 348,715
Income and expense recognised MEEAREER
directly in equity relating to R FER WA
disposal group S - 10,017
1,213,374 537,935
Minority interests DB R s 2,392 32,703
Total equity ER B 1,215,766 570,638

Hon Kwok Lung Shang Jianguang

BEE EMEX
Director Director
2 EE
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BALANCE SHEET

EERER

As at 31 December 2007

R=FTLF+=HA=+—H

2007 2006
—EZtHF —ERLRF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B & FET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NEE 17 4,881 6,360
Interests in subsidiaries Fr{k B A Rl R 21 281,025 377,095
Due from disposal group FELR i & 4B B R 3R 22 - 1,735
Interests in jointly-controlled Frfl R
entity EieEn 23 64,425 46,203
Interests in associate P B2 N AIMERS 24 24,244 24,244
Deposits b 26 - 27,000
374,575 482,637
Current assets RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERFIE ek
other receivables H b UG 26 37,545 6,987
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFT AR
through profit or loss NEEZCMEE 29 20,130 37,627
Pledged deposits [mEiEiESN 30 - 4,892
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEFEY 30 29,905 3,812
87,580 53,318
Current liabilities nREBEE
Other payables and accruals Hih N L e & 32 14,852 12,847
Borrowings EE 34 - 3,652
14,852 16,499
Net current assets TREBEEEE 72,728 36,819
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBEE 447,303 519,456
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings EE 34 - 55,348
Net assets BEERE 447,303 464,108
EQUITY R
Share capital &N 38 179,203 179,203
Reserves G 40 268,100 284,905
Total equity A 447,303 464,108

Hon Kwok Lung Shang Jianguang

BEE BMEX
Director Director
B B
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2007

BE-TTLE-AS+—HILER

2007 2006
b3 o -3 ZETRE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
(k=3 TEx FTET
(Restated)
(Z7)
Cash flows from operating activities of BERERCARILREXE
continuing and discontinued operations ZREERELECHERE
Profit/(Loss) before income tax BESHANEF/ (BE)
Continuing operations BEREERK 108,809 59,494
Discontinued operations BIRIFEEET 11 325,566 (18,781)
Total Bt 434,375 40,713
Adjustments for: R
Interest income MEWA (1,642) (2,813)
Finance costs BIT5E A 18,761 5,061
Dividend income from available-for-sale AHHESREEY
financial assets BBUA (48,383) -
Dividend income from financial assets BATEF AR EE
at fair value through profit or loss JERMEEZRSBA 7 (374) (756)
Loss on disposals/write off of property, HeE /MEmE - BE
plant and equipment, net NiREZERFE 9 262 31
Net surplus on revaluation of REMES (L BH
investment properties x| 18 (10,178) (25,214)
Depreciation £ 17 11,962 21,908
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments  F&ff 3170 & FIE E 54 19 3,952 3,465
Share of results of an associate [EE—RE A R%EE 24 (2,212) (5,028)
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEMB ARz 44 (366,806) -
Gain on disposals of investment properties HEREME 7 I (22,853) -
Unrealised loss on derivative TESRMIAZAEE 9 5,017 -
financial instruments B8
Impairment for doubtful debts RERE - 1,997
Write-back for inventories FE&MD 9 - (6,379)
Provision for inventories FERE 9 - 261
Operating profit before working capital changes &84 & & 8 A 2 &2 F 21,881 33,246
Increase in properties under development BRI (111,339) (393,585)
Decrease in properties held for sale HEMERD 70,164 166
Increase in inventories FEENm (27,602) (2,384)
Decrease/(Increase) in trade and EMET R EERD,/
bills receivables (3% 47,221 (73,940)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and BRRE - ZeREM
other receivables FEULFRE 0 (28,657) (39,254)
Decrease/(Increase) in financial assets BRAFE AR EE
at fair value through profit or loss ZERMBERD /(HEmM) 4,587 (4,555)
(Decrease)/Increase in trade payables FERBERZCRIA )/ (10,514) 27,696
Increase in other payables and accruals HibpEN T R ET B AL M 31,774 18,756
Increase in deposits received from customers B EFEEEN 65,747 16,938
Decrease in amounts due from minority R DEEREZEA
equity holders KRR = 7,480
Increase in amounts due to related companies Bt B EE A AR ZUIE N 39,464 163
Cash from/(used in) operations mastzkEr (R 28RS 102,726 (409,273)
Interest received BUH S 1,642 2813
Interest paid 2F S (18,761) (5,061)
Overseas tax paid BAREIMIIR (27,859) (6,895)
Net cash generated from/(used in) sz /()2
operating activities BE 38 57,748 (418,416)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

2007 2006
“EELE ZTERE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt zE TR T
(Restated)
(E7))
Cash flows from investing activities of BEREREARILREER
continuing and discontinued operations ZRETHELZRERE
Dividends received from available-for-sale ERAHHE SR
financial assets BERS 750 -
Dividends received from financial assets BUIR AT ER AGF
at fair value through profit or loss FEEZEREERS 7 374 756
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWE BERE (73,526) (21,986)
Additional prepaid land lease payments EOMNEM T ERIE (10,511)
Purchases of investment properties BEREME 18 (10,332) (88,795)
Proceeds from disposals of investment HERENEME
properties HIE 142,853 -
Acquisition of associate WE-REE R 24 = (24,244)
Net cash outflow from disposals of subsidiaries HEWBARZESRHTFE 44 (304,688) =
Decrease in pledged deposits BEEETR D 4,719 5,670
Net cash used in investing activities REEHMACES TSR (250,361) (128,599)
Cash flows from financing activities of BESERCAILBEER
continuing and discontinued operations ZRETHELEZHAERE
New bank loans HIEETER 220,311 207,800
Proceeds from issue of new shares BITHR O FTEE0E - 48,420
Repayments of bank and other loans BRFIREMER (171,701) (73,000)
Contribution from minority interests PYRFFE - 12,019
Loans from a related party —HEBBEALZER = 180,000
Net cash generated from financing activities MEEHEL VR ERE 48,610 375,239
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents BEeRBEEEN 2R FE (144,003) (171,776)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—A—-BzBEERELZEY 234,616 370,909
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net  EXRSEHTETFHE (8,251) 35,483
Cash and cash equivalents RT-A=t-HzE%
at 31 December REEZEY 82,362 234,616
Analysis of balances of cash and REeRBLSEBUNEHIN
cash equivalents
Cash at bank and in hand BIEEREFRS
Remaining Group HTEE 30 82,362 39,836
Disposal Group HERA 11 = 194,780
82,362 234,616
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY J 2
MEERBEX

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HItFE

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARIREREARGER
Goodwill Exchange Investment
Share arising on Statutory fluctuation  revaluation Minority
Share premium  consolidation* reserves * reserve * reserve * Retained interest Total
capital account*  BAKRAMR AT SHE RE profits * Total HYRE equity
Ra  RORER: EizEE  BRES RBRR  EMER-  REEW Ehy B BRiE

HK§000 HKS000 HK§000 HK§'000 HK§000 HK§000 HK$ 000 HK§000 HKS000 HK$ 000
TERL TR TEL TR TR Th TR Thr TiEn TR

At 1 January 2006 RZEENE
-A-8B 154,483 - (15,300 ) 14,747 6,808 - 298,285 459,018 20877 479,89

Exchange realignment BN AR = = - - 8,150 - - 8,150 87 8,237
Total income and ERRNERRERL

expense for the year REERAR

recognised directly RxiE

in equity - - - - 8,150 - - 8,150 87 8,237
Transfer to statutory BRTITRE

resenves 8 o - - 3,072 - - (3,072) - - -
Net proft for the year FREH = - - - - - 2,347 2341 (280) 22067

Total recognised income ~ BEAZAEE

and expense fortheyear  WARB6E - - = 3072 8,150 = 19,275 30,497 (193 30,304
Issue of new shares EIERG 24,720 23,700 - - - - - 48,420 - 48,420
Increase in paid up captal  —FHEBR AL

of a subsidiary RAEm - - - - - - - - 12,019 12,019
At 31 December 2006 RZEERE

and 1 January 2007 +-F=1-H

RZERLE
-A-A 179,203 23,700 (15,300) 17,819 14,953 - 317,560 537,935 32,703 570,638
Exchange realignment EjiEg - - - - 6,175 - - 6,175 143 6,318
Change in fair value of AHESHER
avallable-for-sale INT L)
financial assets - - - - - 241,797 - 241,797 - 241,797

Totalincome and expense ~ B ERREDY
forthe year recognised  REERAR

directly in equity RxiaE - - - - 6,175 241,797 - 247972 143 248,115
Transfer to statutory ERTITEE

reserves g - - - 1,974 - - (1.974) - - -
Net profit for the year EREF - - - - - - 427,467 427,467 (260 421,201

Total recognised income ~~ BEEZAZAERE

and expense for the year ~ WARFXEE - - - 1,974 6,175 241,797 425,493 675,439 (17) 675,322
Disposals of subsiclaries ~ HEMEA

Note 44) () - - - - = = E - m01%4)  (30,194)
Balance at RZBBLETZR

31 December 2007 =t-ReBE 179,203 23,700 (15,300 ) 19,793 21,128 241,797 743,063 1,213,374 2,392 1,215,766

i These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves — * ZEHEEEREGREERABRANZGAMKE
of HK$1,034,171,000 (2006: HK$348,715,000) in the 1,034,171,00058 7T ( ZEZ /N4 : 348,715,00078
consolidated balance sheet. JT) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2007

42

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Haidian Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in
the Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office
is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, South Church Street,
Grand Cayman, Cayman lIslands and its principal place
of business is Units 1902-04, Level 19, International
Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong
Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year, the principal activities of the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)
include:

- Manufacture and distribution of watches and
timepieces

—  Property investment

The principal activities of the Group’s jointly-controlled
entity are manufacture and distribution of enamelled
copper wires.

On 3 December 2007, Seti Timber Industry (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd. (“Seti”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a land resumption agreement
with the Shenzhen Municipal Government (the “Land
Resumption Agreement”). Seti was incorporated in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and was
principally engaged in manufacture and distribution of
timber products in Shenzhen in the PRC. Pursuant to
the Land Resumption Agreement, in 2008, the Shenzhen
Municipal Government shall resume a piece of the land
in Shenzhen that is leased to Seti and Seti shall cease
its existing production operations. In this regard, Seti has
significantly scaled down its operations in manufacture
and distribution of timber products (the “2007
Discontinued Timber Business”) as at 31 December
2007. Details of this transaction have been set out in the
Company’s circular dated on 24 December 2007 (the
“2007 Circular”).

BE-TTLE-AS+—HILER

—RER
FEEREEER AR (ARR]) ARFAE
HeaMi s kiFMzEGRAR - Ha it
E Rl AP.O. Box 309, Ugland House,
South Church Street, Grand Cayman,
Cayman Islands * EEZ & E MBI R EEN
BEf T EBE P 9IRIRE 5 B35 1912 1902-04
E o ARBIROHREBBERHFBRAA
([EEAZPT L) ETR o

FR - ARRREMBAR (SHEIAKE])
ZEBXRBBLE

— BEREEFERERENDH

- PERE

AEE-RARZHERB 2 T EXHREE
KD HRBIER o

RZZEZ+F+-_A=H  ARAE2EHE
RNAIFRBEARECEINDBR AR ([Fw ) H
YT B ET SC YR ) 4 b 17 5 (T Uk |l + 3t 15
F]) o HRERFBEARLMBE([FE])EM
R EEBEBARFBIRYIRIER D8
A E G - BIBURE L - FINTH B
AR T N\ FUE— BRI B RTET
Fezrih MATFUARIIHEBREEESE
HEE Bt RS+ F+-_A=+—
H  HEERBEHERDPR L2 AMESR
BERDHEB AR ZEZTLFERILE
RMEB]) - EERER S ZHBERAR
FAIBHA—_SELF+_A-THHEZEXK
([ZEZFBH]) -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-—ZET+E+-_A=+—HILEE

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

On 15 September 2006, a shareholders’ resolution
was passed to dispose of the entire paid-up capital of
two subsidiaries, namely Beijing Jing Guan Property
Development Company Limited (“Jing Guan”) and Beijing
Xin Yang Property Development Company Limited (“Xin
Yang”) (which is 80% owned by Jing Guan). Jing Guan
and Xin Yang were both incorporated in the PRC and
are principally engaged in the property development (the
“2006 Discontinued Property Development Business”).
Details of this transaction have been set out in the
Company’s circular dated on 30 August 2006 (the “2006
Circular”). The disposals of the 2006 Discontinued
Property Development Business carried out by Jing
Guan and Xin Yang were completed on 22 May 2007.
Jing Guan and Xin Yang are together referred to as the
“2006 Disposal Group” hereafter.

As the 2007 Discontinued Timber Business carried
out by Seti and the 2006 Discontinued Property
Development Business carried out by the 2006 Disposal
Group represent components of the Group’s business,
the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represent separate major lines of businesses, the Group
presented, in its financial statements, the operations
of the 2007 Discontinued Timber Business and the
2006 Discontinued Property Development Business as
discontinued operations in accordance with HKFRS5.
Further details regarding the 2007 Discontinued
Timber Business and the 2006 Discontinued Property
Development Business are set out in note 11.

The Company and other subsidiaries not engaged in
the 2007 Discontinued Timber Business and the 2006
Discontinued Property Development Business are
referred to as the “Remaining Group”.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 34
to 137 have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and Interpretations
(“Int”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The consolidated
financial statements also include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

44

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“HK$'000”) unless otherwise
stated.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2007 were approved for issue by the
board of directors on 17 April 2008.

ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS

From 1 January 2007, the Group has adopted all the
new and amended HKFRSs which are first effective on 1
January 2007 and relevant to the Group. The adoption
of these new and amended HKFRSs did not result in
significant changes in the Group’s accounting policies
but gave rise to additional disclosures. The specific
transitional provisions contained in some of these new
or amended HKFRSs have been considered.

In accordance with the HKAS 1 (Amendment)
Presentation of Financial Statements - Capital
Disclosures, the Group now reports on its capital
management objectives, policies and procedures in each
annual financial report.

HKFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures is
mandatory for reporting periods beginning on 1 January
2007 or later. The new standard replaces and amends
the disclosure requirements previously set out in HKAS
32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and Disclosures
and has been adopted by the Group in its financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2007. All
disclosures relating to financial instruments including the
comparative information have been updated to reflect
the new requirements. In particular, the Group’s financial
statements now feature:

— a sensitive analysis explained the Group’s market
risk exposure in regard to its financial instruments,
and

— a maturity analysis that shows the remaining
contractual maturities of financial liabilities,

each as at the balance sheet date. The first-time
application of HKFRS 7, however, has not resulted in
any prior-period adjustments on cash flows, net income
or balance sheet line items.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2007

BE—ZZLF+-_RA=+—HLFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR REVISED HKFRS (continued)
The Group has not adopted early the following HKFRSs
that have been issued but are not yet effective. The
directors of the Company is currently assessing the
impact of these HKFRSs but are not yet in a position to
state whether they would have material financial impact
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

HKAS 1 (Revised)
HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8

HK(IFRIC) - Int 11

HK(FRIC) - Int 12

HK(IFRIC) - Int 13

HK(FRIC) - Int 14

“Presentation of
Financial Statements™
“Borrowing Costs”!

“Consolidated and
Separate Financial
Statements”

“Share Based Payments”!

“Business Combinations”2

“Operating Segments”!

HKFRS 2 “Group and
Treasury Share
Transactions™

“Service Concession
Arrangements™

“Customer Loyalty
Programmes”s

“HKAS 19 — The Limit on
Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding
Requirements and
their Interaction”s

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March

2007

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2008

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July

2008
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2007

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

3.1.1

46

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have
been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarised below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost convention except for investment
properties, available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
which are stated at fair values. The measurement
bases are fully described in the accounting policies
below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in note 4.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a
going concern basis though the Remaining Group
had net current liabilities (after excluding the non-
current assets held for sale/assets and liabilities
in disposal group held for sale) of HK$69,490,000
(2006: HK$76,860,000) as at 31 December 2007.
The Group has taken and will continue the following
measures to ensure the Group will have adequate
cash flows for the operations of the Group:

()  toimpose tight cost controls;
(i) to raise funds as and when necessary;

(i)

to obtain extension of repayment of existing
borrowings; and

(iv)

to obtain necessary funding from bankers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2007

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.1.2 Going concern (continued)

3.2

3.3

The directors are of the opinion that, in view of
the measures taken to date, the Group will have
sufficient cash resources to satisfy its future
working capital and other financial requirements.

In addition, one of the related companies has
agreed not to demand repayment of the amount
of HK$191,490,000 due to it from the Group
until such time when repayment will not affect the
Remaining Group’s ability to repay other creditors
and the directors do not foresee any circumstances
that the banks will not continue the bank loan
facilities for the Group. Accordingly, the directors
are satisfied that the Group will be able to meet in
full its financial obligations as and when they fall
due for the next twelve months from 31 December
2007 without significant curtailment of operations
and are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare
the financial statements on a going concern
basis. The financial statements do not include any
adjustments relating to the carrying amounts and
reclassifications of assets and liabilities that might
be necessary should the Remaining Group be
unable to continue as a going concern.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
the power to control the financial and operating
policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities.
The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are excluded from
consolidation from the date that control ceases.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B B SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)
3.3 Subsidiaries (continued)

FESHEERSZE @)

3.3 MiBAT(#)

48

Business combinations (other than those the
combining entities are group entities) are accounted
for by applying the purchase method. This involves
the revaluation at fair value of all identifiable assets
and liabilities, including contingent liabilities of the
subsidiary, at the acquisition date, regardless of
whether or not they were recorded in the financial
statements of the subsidiary prior to acquisition. On
initial recognition, the assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary are included in the consolidated balance
sheet at their fair values, which are also used as the
bases for subsequent measurement in accordance
with the Group’s accounting policies.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred.

In the Company’s balance sheet, subsidiaries are
carried at cost less any impairment loss unless the
subsidiary is held for sale or included in disposal
group. The results of the subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable at the balance sheet date.

Minority interest represents the portion of the profit
or loss and net assets of a subsidiary attributable
to equity interests that are not owned by the Group
and are not the Group’s financial liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2007

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.3

3.4

Subsidiaries (continued)

Minority interests are presented in the consolidated
balance sheet within equity, separately from the
equity attributable to the equity holders of the
Company. Profit or loss attributable to the minority
interest is presented separately in the consolidated
income statement as an allocation of the Group’s
results. Where losses applicable to the minority
exceed the minority interest in the subsidiary’s
equity, the excess and further losses applicable
to the minority are allocated against the minority
interest to the extent that the minority has a
binding obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover the losses. Otherwise, the
losses are charged against the Group’s interests.
If the subsidiary subsequently reports profits,
such profits are allocated to the minority interest
only after the minority’s share of losses previously
absorbed by the Group has been recovered.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement
whereby two or more parties undertake an
economic activity that is subject to joint control.
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control over an economic activity, and exists only
when the strategic financial and operating decision
relating to the activity require the unanimous
consent of the venturers.

Interests in jointly controlled entities are accounted
for using proportionate consolidation. The Group
combines its share of the joint ventures’ individual
income and expenses, assets and liabilities and
cash flows on a line-by-line basis with similar items
in the Group’s financial statements. The Group
recognises the portion of gains or losses on the sale
of assets by the Group to the joint venture that it is
attributable to the other venturers. The Group does
not recognise its share of profits or losses from the
joint venture that result from the Group’s purchase
of assets from the joint venture until it resells the
assets to an independent party. However, a loss
on the transaction is recognised immediately if the
loss provides evidence of a reduction in the net
realisable value of current assets, or an impairment
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2007
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.4

3.5

Joint ventures (continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, investment in
jointly controlled entities is stated at cost less any
impairment losses. The results of jointly controlled
entities are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividends received and receivable.

Associates

Associates are those entities over which the Group
is able to exert significant influence, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%
and 50% of voting rights but which are neither
subsidiaries nor investment in a joint venture. In
consolidated financial statements, investment
in associates is initially recognised at cost and
subsequently accounted for using the equity
method. Under the equity method, the Group’s
interest in the associate is carried at cost and
adjusted for the post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of the associate’s net assets less
any identified impairment loss, unless it is classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale). The consolidated
income statement includes the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associate
for the year, including any impairment loss on
goodwill relating to the investment in associate
recognised for the year.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest in the associate
is the carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method together with the Group’s long-term
interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2007

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.5

3.6

Associates (continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Where the associate
uses accounting policies other than those of the
Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances, adjustments are made, when
necessary, to conform the associate’s accounting
policies to those of the Group when the associate’s
financial statements are used by the Group in
applying the equity method.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investment in
associates is stated at cost less any impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends received
and receivable.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a
business combination or an investment in associate
or jointly controlled entity over the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units and is tested annually for
impairment (see note 3.7). In respect of associates
or jointly controlled entities, the carrying amount of
goodwill, if any, is included in the carrying amount
of the Group’s interest in the associate or jointly
controlled entity and is assessed for impairment
as part of the interests in the associate or jointly
controlled entity.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate or a
jointly controlled entity is recognised immediately in
income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

3.6

3.7

52

Goodwill (continued)

On subsequent disposal of a subsidiary, an
associate or a jointly controlled entity, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is
included in the determination of the amount of gain
or loss on disposal.

Goodwill relating to business combinations or
investments in associates or jointly controlled
entities prior to 1 January 2001 continues to be
held in reserves and will be charged to the retained
profits at the time when the business, associate or
jointly controlled entity to which the goodwill relates
is disposed of or when a cash-generating unit to
which goodwill relates becomes impaired.

Impairment of assets

Goodwill, property, plant and equipment,
investment properties, prepaid land lease payments
and interests in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities are subject to impairment testing.

Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication
that it is impaired. All other assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the
asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount under the Group’s accounting policy, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease according to that policy. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HItFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)
3.7 Impairment of assets (continued)

FTESHEERSZE @)

3.7 EEREE)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level. Goodwill in particular is allocated to those
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from synergies of the related business combination
and represent the lowest level within the Group
at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purpose.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating
units, to which goodwill has been allocated, are
credited initially to the carrying amount of goodwill.
Any remaining impairment loss is charged pro rata
to the other assets in the cash generating unit,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less cost
to sell, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss on goodwill is not reversed in
subsequent periods. In respect of other assets,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial
year. At the end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing, recognition
and reversal criteria as it would at the end of the
financial year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 December 2007

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.7 Impairment of assets (continued)
Interim financial reporting and impairment
(continued)
Impairment loss recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no loss, or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period relates.

3.8

54

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or
more intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled
by, or is under common control with, the
Group; (i) has an interest in the Group that
gives it significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) has joint control over the Group;

the party is an associate;

the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its parent;

the party is a close member of the family of
any individual referred to in (a) or (d);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or
for which significant voting power in such
entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any
individual referred to in (d) or (e); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the Group,
or of any entity that is a related party of the
Group.

BE—ZZLF+-RA=+—HLFE

3. FESHHEMEGE)

3.7

3.8

EERMEE)
R & R s e ()

R A pl 2 PR R R BB 1R T Al
EERYREE - MR REEYBRFE
%%ﬁﬂﬂ?—ﬁ”ﬂﬁi}ﬁfﬁ JiE By B 5 1 R

REBNERELEE - AT DR
@Eﬁ%ﬁ°
BREAL

EUATER  BEALHEEAEE
BREAL:

@ BB— %‘JZL/U:EWT AEE%HE

E(DER - IAKE G ENE
B HREES (DR AEEERRZ

S AHAEEREEATES &
(i) ¥ A< 62 [ A AL (R 4%

(b) RBEAL:
© REREHIERE :

d) ABEASEFEJRRZETEEEA
g

@ Mk BATRER AL ZIR

() AXEEREE ) ()BT E
MALTBEBZERZS - KRZEH
‘kxiﬁ%%‘kﬁﬁikhmﬁéz

R

9 RAKEIBASERBEEALZ
ERERZRERENMRERRE
FETE

China Haidian Holdings Limited HEZREBEHR2A T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-—ZET+E+-_A=+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)
3.9 Property, plant and equipment

FTESHEERSZE @)

3.9 % BERREE)

Buildings held for own use which are situated on
leasehold land, where the fair value of the buildings
could be measured separately from the fair value
of the leasehold land at the inception of the lease,
and other items of plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress (“CIP”), are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

Depreciation on other assets is provided to write
off the cost less their estimated residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method at the following rates per annum:

Over the terms of

the leases or estimated
useful lives, ranging between
6 years and 50 years,
whichever is shorter
Over the terms of

the leases, or estimated
useful life of 10 years,
whichever is shorter

6% to 25%

10% to 33 /3%

10% to 25%

Buildings

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

The assets’ estimated residual values and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each balance sheet date.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in the income statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs
and maintenance, are charged to the income
statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 75 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HItFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HEEME(HE)
POLICIES (continued)
3.9 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

3.9 M% - BEKRKRE(HE)

CIP, which mainly represents leasehold
improvements on buildings, is stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses. Cost
comprises direct costs incurred during the periods
of construction, installation and testing. No
depreciation is provided on CIP. CIP is reclassified
to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

3.10 Investment property

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation.

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment
property is accounted for as if it were held under a
finance lease.

On initial recognition, investment property is
measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment property is stated at fair value. Fair
value is determined by external professional valuers,
with sufficient experience with respect to both the
location and the nature of the investment property.
The carrying amounts recognised in the balance
sheet reflect the prevailing market conditions at the
balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in the income statement for the period in
which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HEFHMEHE)
POLICIES (continued)
3.11 Properties under development

311 BERYE

Properties under development with undetermined
future use are stated at cost, which includes all
development expenditure, interest charges and
other costs directly attributable to such properties,
less any impairment.

Properties under development which had either
been pre-sold or which were intended for sale are
stated a lower of cost and net realisable value.

As properties under development were all carried
out within the 2006 Discontinued Property
Development Business, these are included in assets
in disposal group classified as held for sale.

3.12 Properties held for sale

Properties for sale held at the balance sheet date
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal. As properties
held for sale were all carried out within the 2006
Discontinued Property Development Business,
these are included in assets in disposal group
classified as held for sale.

3.13 Operating Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment or a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-—ZET+E+-_A=+—HILEE

3.

58

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.13 Lease (continued)

()  Operating lease charges as the lessee

Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases.
Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line method over
the lease terms except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised
in the income statement as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments made.
Contingent rental are charged to the income
statement in the accounting period in which
they are incurred.

(i) Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments are up-front
payments to acquire the long term interests
in usage of land. The payments are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated on a straight-line method over the
respective lease term.

3.14 Financial assets
The Group’s financial assets are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables and available-for-sale
financial assets.

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEETHEME(H)
POLICIES (continued)
3.14 Financial assets (continued) B4 cREE(E)

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss,
directly attributable transaction costs.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred. At each balance sheet date, financial
assets are reviewed to assess whether there is
objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, impairment loss is determined
and recognised based on the classification of the
financial asset.

() Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are mainly financial assets held for trading
and they are acquired for the purpose of
selling in the near term.

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or
loss if the following criteria are met:

— the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the
assets or recognising gains or losses on
them on a different basis; or

—  the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy and information
about the group of financial assets is
provided internally on that basis to the
key management personnel; or
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007

3.

60

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.14 Financial assets (continued)

()

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (continued)

— the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be
separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the financial
assets included in this category are measured
at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in income statement.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method, less any impairment losses. Amortised
cost is calculated taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost.

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets include
non-derivative financial assets that are either
designated to this category or do not qualify
for inclusion in any of other categories of
financial assets. All financial assets within this
category are subsequently measured at fair
value. Gain or loss arising from a change in the
fair value is recognised directly in equity until
the financial asset is derecognised, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity would be recognised
in the income statement. Interest calculated
using the effective interest rate method is
recognised in the income statement. Upon
disposal, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity is transferred to the
income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007

3.

Annual Report 2007

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.14 Financial assets (continued)

(iii)  Available-for-sale financial assets (continued)

For available-for-sale investments in equity
securities which do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured, they
are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition.

Impairment of financial assets

At each balance sheet date, financial assets other
than at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed
to determine whether there is any objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence exists,
the impairment loss is measured and recognised as
follows:

(0

Loans and receivables

A provision for impairment of loans and
receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of the receivables. Significant
financial difficulties of the debtor, probability
that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or
financial reorganization, and default or
delinguency in payments (more than 30 days
overdue) are considered indicators that the
trade receivable is impaired.

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
has been incurred, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The amount of the loss is recognised in the
income statement of the period in which the
impairment occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007

3.

62

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
3.14 Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Loans and receivables (continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed to the extent that it does not result
in a carrying amount of the financial asset
exceeding what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised
at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in the
income statement of the period in which the
reversal occurs.

Available-for-sale financial assets

When a decline in the fair value of an available-
for-sale financial asset has been recognised
directly in equity and there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, an amount
is removed from equity and recognised in
the income statement as impairment loss.
That amount is measured as the difference
between the asset’s acquisition cost (net of
any principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that asset previously recognised in the income
statement.

Reversals of impairment for investment in
equity instruments classified as available-
for-sale are not recognised in the income
statement. The subsequent increase in
fair value is recognised directly in equity.
Impairment losses in respect of debt securities
are reversed if the subsequent increase in
fair value can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised. Reversal of impairment losses
in such circumstances are recognised in the
income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)
3.15 Financial liabilities

FESHEERSZE @)

315 2mER

The Group’s financial liabilities include borrowings,
amounts due to related companies, trade and
other payables and derivative financial instruments.
They are included in balance sheet line items as
borrowings under current or non-current liabilities,
trade and other payables or derivative financial
instruments.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument and are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract are
discharged, cancelled or expire. All interest related
charges are recognised as an expense in finance
costs in the income statement.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability,
and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognised in the income statement.

()  Borrowings

Borrowings are mainly bank loans and
are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

(i)  Trade and other payables and amounts due to
related companies
They are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost
less settlement payments, using the effective
interest rate method.

(i)  Derivative financial instruments
Detail policy is included in note 3.16 below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)
3.16 Derivative financial instruments

FESHEERSZE @)
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64

Contracts to buy and sell a non-financial items is
accounted for as derivative when it can be settled
net in cash or another financial instrument and is
not held for the purpose of receipt or delivery of the
non-financial item in accordance with the Group’s
expected purchase, sale or usage requirement.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At each balance sheet date
the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss on
remeasurement to fair value is charged immediately
to profit or loss, except where the derivatives
qualify for cash flow hedge accounting or hedge the
net investment in a foreign operation, in which case
recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends
on the nature of the item being hedged.

3.17 Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined using
the weighted average basis, and in the case of
work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business less any applicable selling expenses.

3.18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at
bank and in hand, demand deposits with banks
and short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

3.19 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be
made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet
date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-—ZET+E+-_A=+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HEHME(HE)
POLICIES (continued)
3.19 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued) 319 RERFREE(E)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

3.20 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting
period, that are unpaid at the balance sheet date.
They are calculated according to the tax rates and
tax laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which
they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.
All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognised as a component of tax expense in the
income statement.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the balance sheet
date between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised
for all deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HEHMEHE)
POLICIES (continued)

3.20 Accounting for income taxes (continued) 3.20 FAIfSBiEstEE (&)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries and associates, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
the liability is settled or the asset realised, provided
they are enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in the income statement, or in equity
if they relate to items that are charged or credited
directly to equity.

3.21 Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair
values where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with the attached conditions. Government grants
relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the income statement over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate. Grants related to depreciable assets
are included in non-current liabilities as deferred
income and are recognised in the income statement
on a straight line basis over the useful lives of the
assets.

3.22 Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value for the sale of
goods and services and the use by others of the
Group’s assets yielding interest, and dividends, net
of rebates and discounts. Provided it is probable
that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HEHME(HE)
POLICIES (continued)

3.22 Revenue recognition (continued) 3.22 T ARERR(48)

Sales of goods are recognised upon transfer of
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the
customer. This is usually taken as the time when
the goods are delivered and the customer has
accepted the goods.

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held
for sale within the 2006 Discontinued Property
Development Business is recognised upon the
signing of the sale and purchase agreement or
the issue of an occupation permit by the relevant
government authorities, whichever is the later.
Deposits and instalments received on properties
sold prior to the date of revenue recognition are
included in the balance sheet under forward sales
deposits and instalments received.

Rental income, is recognised on a time proportion
basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.

Dividend is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

3.23 Retirement benefit costs and short term

employee benefits

()  Defined contribution plan
The Group operates a defined contribution
staff retirement scheme (the “ORSO Scheme”)
for certain of its employees, the assets of
which are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the eligible employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules
of the ORSO Scheme. When an employee
leaves the ORSO Scheme prior to his/her
interest in the Group’s employer contributions
vesting fully, the ongoing contributions payable
by the Group can be reduced by the relevant
amount of forfeited contributions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007

3.

68

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

3.23Retirement benefit costs and short term
employee benefits (continued)

(i)

(i)

Defined contribution plan (continued)

The Group also operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), for those
employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme not previously covered by
the ORSO Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the
income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The
Group’s employer contributions vest fully with
the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

Pension schemes and other retirement benefits
Pursuant to the relevant regulations of the
government in the PRC, the subsidiaries
operating in the PRC have participated in
central pension schemes (the “Schemes”)
operated by local municipal governments,
whereby the subsidiaries in the PRC are
required to contribute a certain percentage
of the basic salaries of their employees to the
Schemes to fund their retirement benefits.
The local municipal government undertakes to
assume the retirement benefits obligations of
all existing and future retired employees of the
subsidiaries in the PRC. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the Schemes is to
pay the ongoing required contributions under
the Schemes mentioned above. Contributions
under the Schemes are charged to the income
statement as incurred. There are no provisions
under the Schemes whereby forfeited
contributions may be used to reduce future
contributions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-—ZET+E+-_A=+—HILEE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)
3.23Retirement benefit costs and short term
employee benefits (continued)
(i)  Short-term employee benefits
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for

FESHBERME(HE)

.23 RUBRRAR B EESREF (H)

(i) F2RIIER 157
BEAIZEZFRIINEFTEE
RiER - HEENEEEEA LR
AR M A&t 9 Bk < FRAVE L B

annual leave as a result of services rendered o
by employees up to the balance sheet date.
3.24 Borrowing costs 3.24 fEE A

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying assets
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
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ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing
costs are expensed.

3.25 Foreign currency translation 3.25 JpiEia e
In the individual financial statements of the AHER EARMBHRERAN - HIMNER
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions SHEBRX S ZHTEERTE A%

are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At balance sheet
date, monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
balance sheet date retranslation of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
at year-end exchange rates are recognised in the
income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt B SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FES:HEHME(HE)
POLICIES (continued)
3.25 Foreign currency translation (continued)

3.25 SN IR ()

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign operations,
originally presented in a currency different from
the Group’s presentation currency, have been
converted into HK$. Assets and liabilities have
been translated into HK$ at the closing rates at the
balance sheet date. Income and expenses have
been converted into the HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates or at the average
rates over the reporting period provided that the
exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any
differences arising from this procedure have been
dealt with in the exchange fluctuation reserve in
equity.

3.26 Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)
3.26 Financial guarantees issued (continued)

FTESHEERSZE @)

3.26 BB 2 BEER(E)

Financial guarantees contracts in the scope of
HKAS 39 are accounted for as financial liabilities.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
at its fair value plus transactions costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issuance
of the financial guarantee contract, except when
such contract is recognised at fair value through
profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at
higher of : (i) the amount determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 “Provision, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets”; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, accumulated
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS
18 “Revenue”.

3.27 Segment reporting

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary reporting
format and geographical segments as the
secondary reporting format.

In respect of business segment reporting,
unallocated costs represent corporate expenses.
Segment assets consist primarily of property, plant
and equipment, investment properties, prepaid
land lease payments, inventories, receivables and
operating cash, and mainly exclude available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Segment liabilities comprise
operating liabilities and exclude items such as
borrowings and other liabilities that are incurred for
financing rather than operating purpose.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt B SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)
3.27 Segment reporting (continued)

FTESHEERSZE @)

3.27 DL (E)

72

Capital expenditure comprises additions to
property, plant and equipment.

In respect of geographical segment reporting,
revenue are based on the country in which the
customers are located and total assets and capital
expenditure are where the assets are located.

3.28 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets held for sale and assets in
disposal groups are classified as held for sale
if their carrying amount is recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met
only when the sale is highly probable and the asset
(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale
in its present condition. These assets (and disposal
groups), other than financial assets, classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

3.29 Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a clearly distinguishable
component of the Group’s business that has been
disposed of or is classified as held for sale, which
represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations of the Group.

3.30 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued. Any transaction
costs associated with the issuing of shares are
deducted from share premium to the extent they
are incremental costs directly attributable to the
equity transaction.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-—ZET+E+-_A=+—HILEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies
Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor
The Group has entered into commercial property
leases on its investment property portfolio and has
determined that it retains all the significant risks and
rewards of ownership of these properties which are
leased out on operating leases.

4.2 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are discussed below:

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-
generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the cash-generating unit and also to choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Goodwill of the
Group amounting to HK$4,816,000 has been fully
impaired for the years ended 31 December 2007
and 2006, further details of which are set out in
note 20 to the financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. RBE&#e:t{Lsr 24 @)
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
4.2 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

4.2 BARSFHEFTRER(E)

(continued)

Provision against slow-moving inventories

Provision for slow-moving inventories is made
based on the aging and estimated net realisable
value of inventories. The assessment of the
provision amount required involves management
judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact
the carrying value of inventories and provision
charge/write-back in the period in which such
estimate has been changed.

Depreciation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and
equipment on a straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of 4 to 50 years, starting
from the date on which the assets are placed into
productive use. The estimated useful lives reflect
the directors’ estimate of the periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits
from the use of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment.

Estimated impairment of trade receivable

The impairment loss on trade receivables of the
Group is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of
the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default
or delinquency in payments are considered
indicators that the trade receivable is impaired.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC,
Significant judgement is required in determining
the amount of the provision for income taxes and
the timing of payment of related taxes. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.

There is no impact of such a change of enterprise
income tax on the Group because there are no
material temporary differences. Therefore, no
deferred taxation has been provided for the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HItFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4.
JUDGEMENTS (continued)
4.2 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

B E aT 5T & Il (40

4.2 BREETHET RERR(E)

(continued)

Fair value of investment properties

The investment properties of the Group were stated
at fair value in accordance with the accounting
policy stated in note 3.10. The fair values of the
investment properties are determined by Chung,
Chan & Associates and Asset Appraisal Limited,
independent professionally qualified valuers, and
the fair value of investment properties are set out in
note 18 to the financial statements. Such valuations
were based on certain assumptions, which are
subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results.

In making the judgement, reasonable consideration
has been given to the underlying assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing
at the balance sheet date. These estimates are
regularly compared to actual market data and
actual transactions in the market.

Fair value of available-for-sale financial assets

The available-for-sale financial assets of the Group
(other than available-for-sale investments in equity
securities which do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured) were stated at fair
value in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 3.14. The fair values of the available-
for-sale financial assets are determined by Asset
Appraisal Limited, an independent professionally
qualified valuer, and the fair values of available-
for-sale financial assets are set out in note 25 to
the financial statements. Such valuations were
based on certain assumptions, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-_ZTT+E+-_A=+—HILEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Primary reporting format — business segments

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide.
Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other business segments. Summary
details of the business segments are as follows:

(@) manufacture and distribution of watches and
timepieces;

(b) manufacture and distribution of enamelled copper
wires (carried out by the Group’s jointly controlled
entity);

(c) property investment; and

Manufacture and distribution of timber products carried
out by the 2007 Discontinued Timber Business and the
2006 Discontinued Property Development Business
carried out by the Disposal Group as mentioned in note
1 during the year have been classified as discontinued
operations for the year (note 11).

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market
prices.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HItFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 7BERGE)
Primary reporting format — business segments FTEERHFIN XKD E(E)
(continued)
2007 —EELF
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
KFEGERY BALRELE
2006
Discontinued 2007
Property Discontinued
Development Timber
Business Business
Watchesand ~ Enamelled  Property ZEERE CEEBtE
timepieces copper wires  investment Total BAL BRI Total

EHRETER  REER  WRRE i NRERRE  AHRE it
HKB000  HK§000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS00D  HKSO000
Thn Thn tin Thn thn Tin Thx

Segment revenue and gains: PRR R :
Sales to external customers AHAREHE 165,327 406,482 4249 576,068 3,350 104,887 108,237
Other income and financial income EfA R 1,025 14,599 29 15,653 99 4,802 4,901
Total @t 166,352 421,081 4,218 591,711 3,449 109,689 113,138
Segment results M4 37,696 4,005 31275 73,008 (9785)  (19851)  (29636)
Unallocated corporate income AL WNGIL N
and expenses, net Rz mge 40,548 366,806
113,754 387,170
Share of results of an associate ElE-—FHEnTEE 2212 -
Finance costs SBER (7,157) (11,604)
Profit before income tax BRETER AR 108,809 325,566
Income tax FiSH (7,168) -
Profit for the year EERA 101,641 325,506
Segment assets HEEE 137380 200971 61285 399616 - 21062 216,082
Unallocated assets AONEE 1,000,693 -
1,409,309 276,02
Segment liabiltes HERE 38,713 27,428 11,301 77,442 - 49,712 49,712
Borrowings EE 86,219 26,59
Due to related companies EREEEARNR 13,034 196,277
Unallocated liablties APHER 20,315 -
197,010 212,585
Other segment information; HMAEER
Depreciation and amortisation of prepaid ~ FERER LiEE
land lease payments AR 2640 2,887 - 552 291 10,387 10678
Net surplus on revaluation of investment ~ REANEEREEAFE
properties - - (10,178) (10,178) - - -
Capital expenditure BARX 5847 78,003 10513 94,363 2 - 2
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5.
Primary reporting format — business segments
(continued)

2EER (8
FREHF A -RBSBE(R)

78

2006 (Restated) —TERF(EY)
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BESEER BRIBEER
2006
Discontinued 2007
Property Discontinued
Development Timber
Business  Business
Watchesand ~ Enamelled  Property “EERNE  ZEELE
timepieces copper wires  investment Total BALE g&L Total
BRRNGER  REHE  WERE i NEBREE  ANER @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Th T Thr ThR T Thn THL
Segment revenue and gains: FRWA RN :
Sales to external customers AR EPHE 130,358 196,414 4,002 330,774 282,953 103,984 386,937
Other income and financial income Etb A RSBUA 331 9,515 2 9,848 5,690 3470 9,160
Total & 130,689 205,929 4,004 340,622 288,643 107,454 396,097
Segment results HERE 20,514 7,168 22,832 50,514 12912 (29512)  (16,600)
Unallocated corporate income FOBAIMA
and expenses REHiFE 6,832 -
57,346 (16,600)
Share of results of an assaciate i € N 5,028 -
Finance costs BER 2,880) (2,181)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRERAEN/ (BE) 59,494 (18,781)
Income tax FiEH (7.815) 0,831)
Profit/{oss) for the year EREN/ (B8) 51,679 (29612)
Segment assets PEEE 107,031 165,273 160,735 433039 1,262,408 246,299 1,508,707
Unallocated assets KAREE 135,964 -
569,008 1,508,707
Segment liabilities HEAE 32,458 26,705 8,209 67,422 618,559 30,185 648,744
Borrowings e 144,701 447,000
Due to related companies EAEBERART - 180,206
Unallocated abiltes FOEAE 18,909 -
231,032 1,276,040
Other segment information: HHAEER
Depreciation and amortisation of prepaid  #1& REM T ETESRH
land lease payments 2,735 2,444 - 5179 1,616 17,774 19,390
Net surplus on revaluation of investment ~ REANEEEBHFE
properties - - (22,031) (22,031) (3,183) - (3,183)
(Write-back)/Provision for inventories 7K (BE) /BB 261 - - 261 - (6,379) (6,379)
Capital expenditure BB 1,065 2,108 88,795 91,968 865 13 878
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-—ZET+E+-_A=+—HILEE

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5. 28EBHE)
Secondary reporting format - Geographical REERAN—HEDE
segments

The Group’s operations are located in two main
geographical areas. The following table provides an
analysis of the Group’s sales by geographical market,
irrespective of the origin of the goods and services.

AREBEBLUNMEEZHE -

TRE#EE
wERMIS(TwmEm &R ZREM) 8D 2
REEHENT °

Sales revenue by geographical markets: R ETTIR RS 7 SHE WA
2007 2006
—EELF —EERE
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHET FAT
(Restated)
(&%)
Continuing operations: BEREEK .
Hong Kong &BE 3,817 27,938
PRC =8 572,241 302,836
576,058 330,774
Discontinued operations: B&RIE&EERK
PRC A 108,237 386,937
684,295 717,711

DHEEEREBEARYE  BFE IEHERE
NEtwHERBRENREEMELR D
i BREADHEINWT -

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
segment assets, and additions to property, plant and
equipment and prepaid land lease payments, analysed
by the geographical area in which the assets are
located.

Segment assets Capital expenditures

PEEE =N
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EZLF —EEREF —E2tF ZERERF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FH&T FET FET
(Restated) (Restated)
(&) (&%)
Continuing operations: BERSEEK

Hong Kong BB 12,832 120,000 10,513 88,795
PRC Fh 386,784 313,039 83,850 3,173
399,616 433,039 94,363 91,068

Discontinued operations: BRIHEEETK
PRC = 276,052 1,508,707 23 878
675,668 | 1,941,746 94,386 92,846
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

6. REVENUE 6. WA
Revenue on continuing operations, which is also the Lok I AR AR EELXRE - T}
Group’ turnover, represents the net invoiced value EMBREZREBS RN ERE D REFH
of goods sold, after allowances for returns and trade B REWREKESIA - EREDR I
discounts, and rental income received and receivable. AT :

Revenue recognised during the year is as follows:

2007 2006
—ETtHF —ETRF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
Revenue on continuing BEREEKZIMA
operations
Sales of goods EmEE 571,809 326,772
Gross rental income e W A B 4,249 4,002
576,058 330,774
7. OTHER INCOME AND FINANCIAL INCOME 7. B A REIEURA
2007 2006
—ETtHF —ETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(&%)
(@) Other income on (a) FHEEEEB
continuing operations HAUg A
Income from sale of HE YR
scrapped materials ZWA 14,599 9,008
Others Hith 38 751
14,637 9,759
(o)  Financial income on (o) FHEEEEB
continuing operations B A
Bank interest income RITHBUA 1,549 934
Dividend income from RAFER AmFsk
financial assets at fair BiEceRmEE
value through profit Z IR EMA
or loss 374 756
1,923 1,690
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HItFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HMKER
2007 2006
—EZtHF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&xT FHET
(Restated)
(E5))
Continuing operations HEREEK
Interest on bank and other BRAFANEH
loans wholly repayable EBRZRITR
within five years HEHERHS 7,157 2,880

9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/

9. PBRETSHANEF

BRATSBADE FIE M, (GEA) TFIEIA -

(crediting):
2007 2006
—EE2tLF ZETRF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
(Restated)
(E7))
Continuing operations FEREEK
Cost of inventories recognised MR AR 2 FERA
as expense 468,903 251,462
Depreciation e 5,455 5,179
Amortisation of prepaid FEf L0 E FRIE B 5
land lease payments 72 -
Unrealised loss on derivative ESBIAREHEBE
financial instruments 5,017 -
Minimum lease payments under it RIEFLLEFL
operating leases in respect of I8 NREHEERIE
land and buildings 7,236 4,200
Auditors’ remuneration ZERE N & 1,200 1,000
Gross rental income ik N L (4,249) (4,002)
Less: direct operating expenses Ji @ HIERK LR 787 401
Net rental income AW AR (3,462) (3,601)
Loss on disposals/write off of  HEEE s -
property, plant and M E K& - FEE
equipment, net 112 31
Provision for inventories GFEEE - 261
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FIEHMAX
For the year ended 31 December 2007, Hong Kong REBEE_TTLE+_A=1+—RHILFE -
profits tax for the Group has been provided at the rate REFREBES Z G ERBETIZE =
of 17.5% on the estimated assessable profits arising in 17.5%( BT RF  17.5%) EHEEFE
Hong Kong (2006: 17.5%). The subsidiaries established TR - NAPBEKT 2B ARIBIRI5%E
in the PRC are subject to income taxes at tax rates 33% 7 TR BANFTISHE ©

ranging between 15% and 33%.

Income tax on overseas profits has been calculated on TEINE R 2 TS %: TY gk 5 N 51 FE 2R B 0% 7
the estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates BAREERSEERR 2IRTHEIE o
of taxation prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.
2007 2006
—EELF ZEER
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FABT
Continuing operations BELSEEK
Current tax for the year: FARNEARL A ¢
Hong Kong B 951 2,294
PRC H 6,217 3,304
Under-provision in respect of @ FEEETE
prior years - 2,217
Total income tax expense FriSfip s 4% 7,168 7,815
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HItFE

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FIBHMAXZ (&)
Reconciliation between income tax expense and e B @AM RAE s e 85H,
accounting profit/(loss) at applicable tax rates: (B8 HERAT -
2007 2006
—ETtHF ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
(Restated)
(E%)
Profit before income tax on FEICEERR 2
continuing operations FT{S T AT & F 108,809 59,494
Tax at the applicable rates to ~ BEAME L EERR
profit in the tax jurisdictions i 4% 38 R B =R
concerned ATEZBIE 18,053 5,644
Income not subject to tax BERR WA (15,712) (1,909)
Expenses not deductible for tax A 12 fI 2,857 1,825
Adjustments in respect of BB ERAEH
income tax of previous EH %
periods = 2,218
Other temporary differences Hith R AERE RS
not recognised = (72) (166)
Tax losses utilised from B AR AT A
previous periods MIBEE - 203
Tax losses not recognised RERBIBERE 2,042 -
Income tax expense Frigfipa s 7,168 7,815
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

11.

84

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE/ASSETS

IN DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR

SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

11.1 2007 Discontinued Timber Business
As described in note 1, on 3 December 2007,
Seti, a PRC wholly-owned subsidiary within the
Group and principally engaged in manufacture and
distribution of timber products, entered into the
Land Resumption Agreement with the Shenzhen
Municipal Government. Pursuant to the Land
Resumption Agreement, in 2008, the Shenzhen
Municipal Government shall resume the land in
Shenzhen that is currently leased to Seti (the “PRC
Land”) and Seti shall cease its existing production.
In this regard, Seti has significantly scaled down its
operations in manufacture and distribution of timber
products as at 31 December 2007. Details of this
transaction have been set out in the Company’s
2007 Circular.

According to the Land Resumption Agreement, the
Shenzhen Municipal Government shall retain 50% of
the PRC Land and shall arrange for the remaining
50% of the PRC Land (the “Auction PRC Land”) to
be auctioned for sale at an open auction (the “Open
Auction”) in 2008. The compensation to be paid to
Seti by the Shenzhen Municipal Government, as a
result of the land resumption, shall be 89.5% of the
proceeds of the Auction PRC Land as determined
in the Open Auction in 2008 and shall be paid by
the Shenzhen Municipal Government to Seti in 60
days after the proceeds from the Open Auction are
collected.

As at 31 December 2007, the title of the PRC Land
has not yet been passed and Seti is still occupying
the PRC Land although the timber operations
have been significantly scaled down. Based on
the valuation as set out in the 2007 Circular, the
value of the PRC Land is significantly higher than
the carrying amounts of the property, plant and
equipment and prepaid land lease payments as
presently recorded in the books of Seti. In the
absence of any unforeseen adverse circumstances,
no impairment loss is considered necessary by
the directors of the Company as a consequence
of the land resumption by the Shenzhen Municipal
Government.

N, FIEHEZHRBDEE STERAFEL
EZHEMNEERCRIEEERE

111 ZZEZLFERIEARMEKE

MMM E1PAE - R -EEEFE+ A
=R AEEATEREAVERRE
K538z B 2 B 2 Rl AR BRI
R AT S U B £t e o RIR U R+
Wi - FINTBRAFER —FT/N\FK
B B A T AR T AL RORIN 2 L3t ([ B
TH]) MHETRAARLEERALEE
X5 AERNYE R-TTLF+-A
=t+—B  HRFEEABEREANER
HERDHERBZHRE - WX HZFHE
EERARBZ ZTTHFHE -

R E T HE - RINH R RE
PR EES0% » W B B ek
TE0%EE([HEFE LR _-FF
NEFEBRARBE((ARAELE -
AU E 3 ORI T B R R 7R 7 X
E SERER_TTNFAMMA
BB LTS RIE289.5% » AT
B ER WER R E TS s IRIR60K
WRFRT SN A R0R -

R-ZBZALXF+-A=+—RH BEAN
MEB2RRE K@M - HEPE L
ZEERRERE  ARTIHAERTE
T REBE-_TTLFRAMEEE
TR ZEEARSRBERRRTZ
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RIEN L AERIE - L EEA AR
BRZTMBERT » ARBEZRBHF
YITH BT UL [ £ 3t & 8 B 3R R E S
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HItFE

11. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE/ASSETS
IN DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD
FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(continued)

11.1 2007 Discontinued Timber Business (continued)
Currently, there is no plan to deregister Seti when
the Open Auction is completed and the proceeds
on the Auction PRC Land are collected.

In accordance with the HKFRS 5, the property,
plant and equipment and prepaid land lease
payments were classified as held for sale in the
consolidated balance sheet as their carrying
values will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction. Other assets and liabilities were
retained by Seti and their carrying amounts were
not classified as held for sale.

11.22006 Discontinued Property Development
Business and 2006 Disposal Group
As described in note 1, on 15 September 2006,
a shareholders’ resolution was passed to dispose
of the entire paid-up capital of the 2006 Disposal
Group to Citychamp Dartong Company Limited
(“Citychamp”). Citychamp is the joint venturer of
the Group’s jointly controlled entity and a company
listed in the Shanghai Stock Exchange in the PRC.
In return, Citychamp conditionally agreed to allot
and issue 72,720,000 shares (the “Consideration
Shares”) and paid RMB36,000 to the Group as the
consideration. Details of this transaction were set
out in the Company’s 2006 Circular. The disposal
of the 2006 Disposal Group was completed on 22
May 2007 (note 44).

During the year, the 2006 Discontinued Property
Development Business carried out by the 2006
Disposal Group is consistently presented as
discontinued operations in accordance with
HKFRS 5.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

11. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE/ASSETS
IN DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD
FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(continued)

11.3 Profit/(loss) for the year from the discontinued

HE_ZTTHE+_A=1+—HILtEE

N. FEHEZHFRBEE FTEARFEL
ECHEANEERCRIEREXER (&)

NIBRIEREEB 2 RNFERN(BHE)

operations is analysed as follows: SATWE :
2007 2006
—EZtHF ZERRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T
(Restated)
(E%)
Loss of the 2007 Discontinued ZEELFEDRIEARM
Timber Business and 2006 EBRZFTREF
Discontinued Property BRIFMERRER
Development Business (note 11.4) ZEE (Mf5E11.4) (41,240) (29,612)
Gain on disposals of the 2006 HEZTTNFHE
Disposal Group (note 44) 451 2 U e (Fi7E44) 366,806 =
Profit/(Loss) for the year from the BRI ET
discontinued operations RNEEHF,(EE) 325,566 (29,612)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

11. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE/ASSETS

BE—ZZLF+-RA=+—HLFE

IN DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD
FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(continued)

11.4An analysis of the results of the 2007
Discontinued Timber Business and 2006
Discontinued Property Development Business
for the year ended 31 December 2007, with
the comparatives for illustrative purpose, is as

11. #4E

ZHRBEE 2 "‘E%?—M’EH&'

&
ECHEANEERCRIEEERR (®

MABE-_ZEE+LtFE+-_A=1+T—HLHEF
B —SZLECRIEAMERRE-Z
ERFCRIEYERRER CEEIN
FREHEZLEHEZEYMT -

follows:
2007 2006
TETLE ZETRE
(Restated)
(E5)
2006 2006
2007 Discontinued 2007 Discontinued
Discontinued Property Discontinued Property
Timber Development Timber  Development
Business Business Business Business
:§§t$ :gg/\_\ﬁ —% 7‘t¢ —% :/\E
B BAL TOTAL BEAL B TOTAL
AHEE NEEREY B | AMEE NRERER tchy
HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Thx TR Thr Thr Thr
Revenue WA 104,887 3,350 108,237 103,984 282,953 386,937
Cost of sales HERE (95,953) (9551)  (105504)  (116210)  (67,615)  (383,825)
Gross profit/(loss) 5/ (B8 8,934 (6,201) 2,733 (12,226) 15,338 3,112
Other income A 4,786 22 4,808 3,436 3,844 7,280
Seling and distrioution expenses BERDEHA (2,751) (508) (3,259 (2,737) 4,330) (7,067)
Administrative expenses THER (10,021) (2,899) (12,920) (30,372) (7,087) (37,459)
Redundancy expense BRI (26,629) - (26,629) - - -
Net surplus on revaluation of RENFERRHTE
investment properties - - - - 3,183 3,183
Other operating income/(expenses) net Xt ELIA /(%) 38 5814 (276) 5,538 12,353 18 12,471
Operating (loss)/profit g (FE) /%A (19,867) (9862)  (29729)  (29,546) 11,066 (18,480)
Financial income HHBA 16 m 9 3 1846 1,880
Finance cost-nterest on bank and ~ EEBE-TEAES
other loans wholly repayable within JRIREM
five years EHAls (11,604) - (11,604) (2,181) - (2,181)
(Loss)/Profit before income tax Rﬁﬁ SHA(BE) /%A (31,455) (0785)  (41,240)  (31693) 12,912 (18,781)
Income tax expense FERET
- current tax —Eﬂ%%%’léi - - - - (10,213) (10213)
- deferred tax —-EitiE - - - - (618) (618)
(Loss)/Profit after income tax BEEsE(FR) /B8R (31,455) (9,785) (41,240) (31,693) 2,081 (29612)
Operating cash flows mepeng (6,805) 12,340 5,535 (18,464)  (153,956)  (172,420)
Investing cash flows RERETE - - - 1465 78 2,197
Financing cash flows HERERE 52,622 117,649 170,271 30,821 32,019 62,840
Total cash inflows/(outflows) #ESEN/ (Rd) 45,817 129,989 175,806 13,822 (121,205)  (107,383)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-—ZET+E+-_A=+—HILEE

11. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE/ASSETS  BEHECERBESE SEBEEY
IN DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD EDHEMARSER DRI KE 2K (H)

FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(continued)

11.4An analysis of the results of the 2007 1MA4BZE-_ZEE2+tFE+-_A=+—8HI=E

88

Discontinued Timber Business and 2006
Discontinued Property Development Business
for the year ended 31 December 2007, with
the comparatives for illustrative purpose, is as
follows: (continued)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
and amortisation of prepaid land lease payments
totalling HK$10,678,000 (2006: HK$19,390,000)
were charged to the profit and loss of the
discontinued operations for the year.

B ZEZTLFEALAMEBER=-F
ERFERIENRBREREB 2REDN
RAEHAZEBEHFRIIMT - (H)

4% 510,678,000/ T ( T T /N4F ¢
19 390,000/ 7C) 2% - JF%%& ST
%&i‘éﬁiiﬂﬁﬂ%?xlﬁﬁﬁﬁawima

BB 2 R B R EIE -

The employee benefit expense of the discontinued ERDPRIFELEE Y EERBANE
operation for the year of HK$33,772,000 (2006: ¥ & 33,772 ooo,%ﬂ;(_ T NE
HK$33,138,000) included wages and salaries of 33,138,000/ 8 L) r B I A& &K #H
HK$6,858,000 (2006: HK$32,274,000), pension £ 6,858,000 T (Z T ZT N F
cost of HK$285,000 (2006: HK$864,000) and 32,274, 000,7575) IR K4 Bk 25 285,000
redundancy cost of HK$26,629,000 (2006: Nil). BT (ZZEERF : 864,000 957—5) EiE
ALK 75 26,629,000 T (Z BT RF
&) -
11.5An analysis of the non-current assets of the 1M5R=EZE+LF+-HA=+—H 284

2007 Discontinued Timber Business classified BEHEZ S +E R IEARMER
as held for sale as at 31 December 2007 is as ZIERBEESHAOT :
follows:
HK$
/%71
Non-current assets held for sale: BEHEZERBEERE
Property, plant and equipment (note 17) YE - R NMRE(MFE17) 150,759
Prepaid land lease payments (note 19) TE L E A (KI3E19) 50,230
200,989

At 31 December 2007, certain buildings of the
2007 Discontinued Timber Business with carrying
value of HK$84,722,000 (2006: HK$83,738,000),
situated in the PRC had been pledged to secure
certain banking facilities granted to the Group (note
34).

At 31 December 2007, certain prepaid land
lease payments of the 2007 Discontinued Timber
Business in the PRC with carrying value of
HK$43,885,000 (2006: HK$44,495,000), have been
pledged to secure certain banking facilities granted
to the Group (note 34).

In relation to the abovementioned pledged buildings
and prepaid land lease payments, the amount of
banking facilites being utilised at 31 December
2007 was HK$26,596,000 (2006: HK$27,000,000).

RZEZEL+F+-_A=+—H =
TLFERIEARAMEBSMLNPEER
B 584,722,000 T (ZEE X &F
83,738,00087) 2 & TIEFEIEIE « 1
R?%@%ﬁ%?fﬁﬂﬂﬁz*ﬂ*ﬁ(MT‘E
34) ¢

RZZFTLF+_A=+—H =%
ELFERIERMEBMLNFPEER
B 543,885,000 T ( — T T XN F ©
44,495,000/ L) 2 & TN T HHEER
HEER  EAAEEERETHRTR
B2 ER(MIFE34) -

MEMBEBZEFRIENEEREM
5 RETLF+_A=+—HEH
2 iR1TRVE £ %8 526,596,00078 7T (=
TE N4 ¢ 27,000,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007

11.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE/ASSETS

IN DISPOSAL GROUP CLASSIFIED AS HELD

FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(continued)

11.6 An analysis of the assets and liabilities of the
2006 Discontinued Property Development

BE—ZZLF+-RA=+—HLFE

. FEHE
Bz HEA

11.6IA =

ZHRBEE DERESEH
HRIEERERIE

R (|

EERFFT-A=T—-H ' =Z2F

ANECRIENEBRRER2EEREE

Business as at 31 December 2006 is as follows: SHAT
HK$
BIT
Assets included in disposal group classified PEABELEZHEAR
as held for sale: EEAE
Property, plant and equipment (note 17) ME - B R (EE17) 8,658
Investment properties (note 18) TEYE(HiFE18) 31,900
Properties under development LR 890,406
Properties held for sale FIELEME 70,164
Trade receivables FEURBR X 5,806
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TE IR « 2o KA M ERGR 52,115
Due from minority equity holders FEU D BUE RSB AR 489
Pledged deposits EHEMER 8,090
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFLEEY 194,780
_ 1,262,408
Liabilities in disposal group classified PEARELEZHEER
as held for sale: EFEEE
Trade payables FERTRRRX 89,773
Deposits received from customers BREFE S 270,488
Other payables and accruals HEmEAR M ETER 58,271
Tax payables FERIHIR 13,560
Interest-bearing bank borrowings FRSRITEE 330,000
Other loans HMER 90,000
Due to related companies ERBBERTRK 296
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIAAE 1,444
Deferred income IRIEUA 185,023
1,038,855
Net assets BEEFE 223,553

12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF

Annual Report 2007

THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated profit attributable to the equity
holders of the Company of 427,467,000 (2006:
HK$22,347,000), a loss of HK$16,805,000 (2006:
HK$6,824,000) has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

—BRLEER

12. RRREHEEFA ABEET

KRAEZEFB ARLGE®F427,467,000

/%E(—?

816,805,000 T (—ZZEZ

T4 22,347,000 70 ) 0 &
JNEE 6,824,000

BT ERAR BRI EHEKR AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

13.

14.

158

90

DIVIDENDS
The board of directors did not recommend any payment
of dividends during the year (2006: Nil).

EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

The calculations of basic earnings/(loss) from continuing
and discontinued operations per share are based on
the profit from continuing operations attributable to
equity holders of the Company of HK$101,641,000
(2006: HK$51,679,000) and the profit from discontinued
operations attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$325,826,000 (2006: loss of HK$29,332,000)
and on the weighted average of 1,792,031,000 (2006:
1,548,928,000) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings/(loss) per share for the years ended 31
December 2007 and 2006 have not been disclosed as
no dilutive events existed during the years.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

BE—ZZLF+-RA=+—HLFE

13.

14.

15.

[ rg=]
FR - EFETERRBETARB(ZEER
FmE) o

BREF,(FHE)
BECEEBRERIEKEEER 2 BRER
BN (EE) REARQREREE AEMN
#%%%%ﬁ%mﬂhmﬁm,ooo,%rz(_? =
7NEE 151,679,000 ) RARNRIERESR
AFE(R B 2 1E 8 & 2 5% F 325,826,000 %
TL(ZZEZRF : E1829,332,0008 7T) M F
N B BT B INHE 9 81,792,031,000/%
(ZZZ /N4 © 1,548,928,000%):1E

HREBE_TELFER_ZTEXF+_A
=t HALEFEYEIREEEES  HAE
REZEFEZERETRT(BE) -

BEEANAX (BERESHE)

2007 2006
—EEtE —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
(Restated)
(E7))
Continuing operations FEREEK

Wages and salaries TENFS 28,863 21,413

Pension costs — defined RIREB KA — E B RETE
contribution plans 1,465 1,353
30,328 22,766

China Haidian Holdings Limited HEZREBEHR2A T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE-_ZET+H+-A=+—HBIEE

16. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 16. EEM4 RSB ETEASHS
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

16.1 Directors’ emoluments 16.1 EEM S
Salaries, Contributions
allowances and to pension
benefits in kind scheme
Fees  #% - 2ER Bk Total
e ENEF STEIHR ik
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TEx THET THT TEx
2007 —EEt
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Hon Kwok Lung EEHELEE - 1,690 12 1,702
Mr. Wang Shaolan B Fiked - 1,580 - 1,580
Mr. Shang Jianguang BENLE - 1,720 60 1,780
Mr. Shi Tao hEkE - 1,690 - 1,690
Mr. Lam Toi Man MR K - 1,430 12 1,442
Non executive director *HTES
Ms. Sit Lai Hei BERE It 100 - - 100
Independent non-executive  §i
directors kBTES
Mr. Fung Tze Wa BFERE 150 - - 150
Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael ~ Bb{&f2 18+ 100 - - 100
Mr. Li Qiang TErh 100 - - 100
450 8,110 84 8,644
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

16. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND SENIOR 16. EEMEe R aESEAEME (&)
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (continued)
16.1 Directors’ emoluments (continued) 16.1 EEMS(E)

Salaries, Contributions

allowances and to pension
benefits in kind scheme
Fees %% 2R R Total
[k BNEN TR L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THBT TR TR
2006 ZEERE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Hon Kwok Lung EEHELEE - 1,690 12 1,702
Mr. Wang Shaolan ILEEE - 1,580 12 1,592
Mr. Shang Jianguang BENLE - 1,725 60 1,785
Mr. Shi Tao hERE = 1,707 = 1,707
Mr. Lam Toi Man WRXEE = 1,430 12 1,442
Non executive director FHITES
Ms. Sit Lai Hei 2y 100 = - 100
Independent non-executive ~ BYEHITEE
directors
Mr. Fung Tze Wa BFERE 133 - - 133
Dr. Kwong Chun Wai, Michael ~ Bb{&f2 18+ 100 - - 100
Mr. Li Qiang TErh 100 - - 100
433 8,132 96 8,661
There was no arrangement under which a director ERTEEERECKRSREIMNE 2 &
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during HE o
the year.
16.2 Five highest paid individuals 162 EBESEHS AL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the KREEEAEE s AL ESMe AT
highest in the Group for both years were also HEESE  HEZHMEERBR s
directors and their emoluments are reflected in the e AEBTEREES AL SE Y
above analysis. No emolument was paid by the AL TRBES  tEEEMALREER
Group to the directors or any of the five highest SHINANEE % 2 ISR B R -

paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 SR AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BENLSRE
Group REE
Furmniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office
improvements ~ Plantand  equipment Motor  Construction

Buildings HENE  machinery (KB £E vehicles in progress Total
g7 K HERME RMLERE hE  HRIR st
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TER TERL TEn TER TEn TEn TEn

At 1 January 2006 RZEE E-A-A
Cost KA 102,438 5,578 118,264 29,643 12,870 - 268,793
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE (14,206) 412)  (23659)  (12,164) (2,765) = (55,206
Net carrying amount FREE 88,232 3,166 94,605 17,479 10,106 - 213,587
Year ended 31 December 2006 HEZEENE
tZA=t-HLEE

Opening net book amount ENEEEE 88,232 3,166 94,605 17479 10,105 - 213,587
Additions RE - 144 1817 591 6,094 - 9,246
Disposals/write-off HE /s - - - - (30) - (30)
Depreciation nE (5,378) (1,383) (10,171) (2,498) (2,478) - (21,908)
Exchange realignment ERA% 10,378 80 116 (3,112) 985 - 8,447
Reclassified o assets in disposal ENRARE

group classified as held for sale HEZHERRIERE

(note 11.6) (FzE11.6) (5,062) (55) - (600) (2,941) - (8,658)
Closing net book amount EREREE 88,170 1,952 86,367 11,860 12,335 - 200,684
At 31 December 2006 \EENETCA=T-R
Cost 5 107,458 5417 120,196 26,074 15,250 - 274,3%
Accumulated depreciation 2iHE (19,288) (3,465) (33,829) (14,214) (2.915) - (78,711)
Net carrying amount FEFE 88,170 1,952 86,367 11,860 12,335 - 200,684
Year ended 31 December 2007 HE-S2tE

TZA=t-BLEE

Opening net book amount ENBEFE 88,170 1,952 86,367 11,860 12,335 - 200,684
Additions RE 42,191 - 4,334 579 1,956 24,867 73,526
Transfer i - - 15,069 - - (15,069 -
Disposals/write-off e - - - (245) (17) - (262)
Depreciation i (@884)  (1073)  (23%9)  (1600)  (2008) - (1.982)
Exchange realignment B 5% 6,761 (109) 4,301 685 478 2,061 14,167
Reclassified to non-current assets ENHBARELEY

feld for sale fnote 11.9) SEREEE(ME15) (84,722) - (52,182) (8,625) (5,230) - (150,759)
Closing net book amount FREEEE 47,516 770 55,490 2,654 7,115 11,849 125,394
At 31 December 2007 RZE5tF+-A=T-H
Cost A 52,117 5,602 65,199 12,951 10,806 11,849 158,484
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE 4,661) (4,732) @709) (10207 (3,691) = (33,090)
Net carrying amount BAFE 47,516 770 55,490 2,654 7115 11,849 125,394
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

BE-TRLET-ASt-

HILEFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17. YM¥ - BERDEE)
Company AN
Furniture,
fixtures
Leasehold and office
improvements equipment Motor
HEWE HFAH -HKB vehicles Total
#1E RPLERE RE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET FHET FAT
At 1 January 2006 RZETRF
—A—H
Cost AR 1,767 880 713 3,360
Accumulated depreciation RitinE (525) (291) (575) (1,391)
Net carrying amount EREDF(E 1,242 589 138 1,969
Year ended 31 December 2006 #HZE —ZETZ /N F
+—-A=+—H
EFE
Opening net book amount FYIREFE 1,242 589 138 1,969
Additions RE — 76 5,118 5,194
Depreciation e (352) (161) (290) (803)
Closing net book amount FAREARTEFE 890 504 4,966 6,360
At 1 January 2007 RZETLF
—A—H
Cost B 1,767 956 5,831 8,554
Accumulated depreciation REtinE 877) (452) (865) (2,194)
Net book amount EREDF(E 890 504 4,966 6,360
Year ended 31 December 2007 #HZE_ZZE+F
+=-A=+—H”
IEFE
Opening net book amount FYIREFE 890 504 4,966 6,360
Additions NE - 127 - 127
Depreciation e (351) (172) (1,083) (1,606)
Closing net book amount FARERTEFE 539 459 3,883 4,881
At 31 December 2007 RZETLF
+—-A=+—~H
Cost B AR 1,767 1,083 5,831 8,681
Accumulated depreciation RitinE (1,228) (624) (1,948) (3,800)
Net book amount BEREFE 539 459 3,883 4,881
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-—ZET+E+-_A=+—HILEE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 17. Y%  BERRE(E

The Group’s buildings separated from the element of
the land included above are situated in the PRC and are
held under the following lease terms:

EX a?ﬁZiim*B1’“’\FfﬁZ$’§l$§+f
REIARE - I BZ T SIFHERREA

2007 2006
—EELF ZETRFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

At cost: AE
Short-term leases SRV EES) 2,640 2,612
Medium-term lease FEIFRA 49,537 104,846
52,177 107,458

At 31 December 2007, no building of the Remaining
Group is pledged to secure certain banking facilities
granted to the Group. At 31 December 2006, certain
of the Group’s buildings with carrying value of
HK$84,722,000 situated in the PRC had been pledged
to secure certain banking facilities granted to the Group
(note 34).

At 31 December 2007, the Group has not yet obtained
the title certificates for certain leasehold buildings
situated in Shenzhen with an aggregate carrying value of
approximately HK$1,135,000 (2006: HK$18,985,000).
The Group’s legal advisors have confirmed that
the Group has legally obtained the rights to use
the buildings. The directors are now in process of
obtaining the relevant title certificates from the relevant
government authorities.

Annual Report 2007 —ZE & Ff
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THHE+-_A=Z+—H  WEKTS
TEBEZEFUALAEERSA THRTRH
§°W_??A¢+ H + = $E.
7 AR B K e P 435 75 BR TE B /584,722,000 7T
ZETEFOER  UAKRKEERSETR
TRLE (FI5E34) ©

RZZEELF+-_A=+—8 AEEHK
FEMAFRINEREES H£41,135,0008 7T
(ZZZT R4 18,985,000 L) 2 & THE
%%Hﬂ SEMEREER - AEBEZEERE

CAEBEERSEBEFIAEERE
%%Eﬁmﬁﬁaﬂzﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁéﬁ
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-—ZET+E+-_A=+—HILEE

18.

96

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP 18. REYXE —KEE

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using the fair value model
and are classified and accounted for as investment
properties.

Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the
balance sheet can be summarised as follows:

P 75 7 55 80 B TR o5 7 4 0 7 DA 8
MUV A 2 MEM > RAT ERR
£ UHWRABARENE -

REEREXRZIZEMEZSHANT

2007 2006

—EELHF ZERERF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—BZEEE 159,748 66,689

Transfer from prepayments P FE N Z0E - 9,845

Additions NE 10,332 88,795

Disposals = (120,000) =
Net surplus on revaluation of BEREMEZ

investment properties Ptk e 10,178 25,214

Exchange alignment PE 5 A% - 1,105
Reclassified to assets in B BARHE

disposal group classified HEZHEARIEE
as held for sale (note 11) (BsE11) - (31,900)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—B ZBREE 60,258 159,748

The carrying amounts of the Group’s investment
properties situated in Hong Kong and the PRC held
under medium-term leases are analysed as follows:

AEEURBEERFPEATHEERE 2K
BEMEZREERAT

2007 2006

—EEEF —EERE

HK$’000 HK$’000

THERT FAT

Hong Kong BF 12,832 120,000
The PRC F 47,426 39,748
60,258 159,748

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at
31 December 2007 by Chung, Chan & Associates, and
Asset Appraisal Limited, independent professionally
qualified valuers, at HK$60,258,000 in aggregate
on market by reference to market prices for similar
properties.

The net surpluses on revaluation of HK$10,178,000 have
been credited to the income statement on the continuing
operation. (2006: HK$22,031,000 and HK$3,183,000
have been credited to the income statement on the
continuing operation and discontinued operations
respectively.)

AEBZEEDER_ZEZTLF+ = A
:+ ElEﬁéﬁiiﬁum—fﬁﬁﬁfﬁ&igﬁ&é
ENFEBEEAERARZERUNE L TMEE
{54258 560,258,000/ 7T °

Efa%ﬁ%%%ﬁm178000,.17136#7\%@ e
CRBEEEBN(ZEERF 1 22,031,000
BT 3,183,000 TE D At ABFR R 2
BRERBRIEEEEBRNA) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

18.

19.

Annual Report 2007

BE—ZZLF+-RA=+—HLFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - GROUP (continued)

At 31 December 2007, the Group had certain
investment properties located in Dongguan, the PRC
with aggregate carrying value of HK$30,240,000 (2006:
HK$24,000,000). The Group has not yet obtained the
relevant title certificate for these properties. The Group’s
legal advisors have confirmed that the Group is the
rightful and equitable owner of these properties.

At 31 December 2007, certain of the Group’s investment
properties with carrying value of HK$12,832,000 (2006:
HK$120,000,000) have been pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 34).

During the year, investment properties with carrying
amount of HK$120,000,000 were sold to an independent
party at a consideration of HK$142,853,000. Accordingly,
a gain amounting to HK$22,853,000 was recognised in
the income statement during the year. The sale proceeds
of HK$142,853,000 have been collected during the year.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS - GROUP 19.

These represent interests in leasehold land and land
use rights in the PRC. Changes to the carrying amounts
presented in the balance sheet can be summarised as
follows:

18. REWX —ANEE (4

R-BTLE+ = H + A AEER
FERMERE TRENE  REAE
30,240,000/ 7L (= F T /N4 : 24,000,000/
L) © AEENARRGZEMR 2 BRERER
A AEEARBEREER - AREEX
EMRZDFEEEEA

RZZEZELtF+ZA=+—8 ' ' &x&E
8K M 18 12,832,000 8 T (ZEZT K F -
120,000,000%7%)2**%&%%%3%&% ,
LAAREEESIRITREE (MI5E34) »

FR - BRE{EA120,000,0008 L 2 I EME
BARE142,853,0008 TE F—ZBILE=
7o At - RERERFIER22,853,000%
T2 WEE o SHE TS FKIE142,853,000/8 T2
A ULER o

AN THEERE &R

U FERIBBRRN P EEE 3 % 30 (E R

ZT“/\ cMEERBEREIN 2FEEEZSH
M

2007 2006

—EEtHF TEETRF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FET

Carrying amount at 1 January —A—BZEEEAE 50,309 51,648

Additions NE 10,511 -

Amortisation during the year R (3,952) (3,465)

Exchange realignment PE 5 2R 3,799 2,126
Reclassification to non-current  EIF DB AIBIEHEY

assets held for sale JEmBEE (FIFE11)

(note 11) (50,230) -
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ _—_A=+—HBZ2FEHEE 10,437 50,309
Less: Current portion o BNEER (210) (3,764)
Non-current portion FERNEREL 10,227 46,545
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

19.

PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS - GROUP
(continued)

At 31 December 2007, no prepaid land lease payments
of the Remaining Group are pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group. At 31 December 2006,
certain of the Group’s prepaid land lease payments in
the PRC with carrying value of HK$44,495,000 have

BE-TTLE-AS+—HILER

19. A LHEERE - AKEE (&)

RZBEE+E+-A=+—8 - WEKTE
THEEZ AL E KRB N AR EBES
BITRE - R _ZETEXF+-_A=+—8 "
AREBN A RHFATHE A REEA44,495,0008
TZETHEMEHEEREDER - UAK

been pledged to secure certain banking facilities granted

to the Group (note 34).

SEESE TRITRE (H5E34) -

Their net book values are analysed as follows: HEBEESHTOT :
2007 2006
—EZtHF ZEERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Short-term leases 2 HATRAY - 44,853
Medium-term leases FRHEAFE 4 10,437 5,456
10,437 50,309

20. GOODWILL - GROUP 20. BE —XKE

There are no changes in the carrying amounts of
goodwill during the year. The net carrying amount of
goodwill is analysed as follows:

FA BEZEOEYEZS - HERDF

BEntranT

2007 2006
—E2tF ZETRF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT
At 1 January n—HA—H

Gross amount FER(E] 4,816 4,816
Accumulated impairment RETRE (4,816) (4,816)

Net carrying amount at W+—-—A=+—82
31 December REFE - -

98
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

20. GOODWILL - GROUP (continued)

21.

The carrying amount of goodwill of HK$4,816,000 was
attributable to the 2007 Discontinued Timber Business.
As this has been fully impaired in previous years, there
is no impact on the income statement during the year
pursuant to the Land Resumption Agreement.

Goodwill arising from business combinations prior to
2001 had been eliminated against the consolidated
reserves. The carrying amount of goodwill in the

BE—ZZLF+-RA=+—HLFE

20.

BE-AEEE)
—ETLFERIEAMERER 2 HERA
E/54,816,00087C - EREEERZHIFE
ZEURE  WE b TEAFREBRER
EERFE o

R-ZE-—FHEBAFELZBECRE
EREEYE R_TTLF+ -_A=1+—
B REamEARBRENBRARZA

consolidated reserves, arising from the acquisition %&ﬁg@{ggw 300,000 B T (ZEEXF -
of subsidiaries, was HK$15,300,000 (2006: 15,300,000/ 7T) °
HK$15,300,000) as at 31 December 2007.
INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY 21. FHEMB A TS — ANT
2007 2006
—EELHF —ETRF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Unlisted investments, at cost FELTERE  RAE 128,174 128,174
Due from subsidiaries FEUCHH B AR R I 456,554 552,624
584,728 680,798
Less: Provision for impairment & : J{ERE & (303,703) (303,703)
281,025 377,095
Amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest- JEWM B AR R TVEERR - R ERTEHD
free and are not expected to be repaid within the next ERARTZEAEE  BZEHBIEL
twelve months. These balances are classified as non- IEMBERE o
current assets accordingly.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (continued) o4
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2007 are as follows:

y
b

‘~

. FRAG B A R AR — AL F ()

RIEZ+F+_A=+—HEFEMNBAA
FHEWT

Particulars Percentage of
of issued issued ordinary/
Place/ ordinary/ paid-up capital held
country of paid-up ORTLE/ Principal activities
incorporation capital S ONVENER I and place of operation
Name M BRITEE/ Directly Indirectly FTEXEE
8 /BR BARSFE B & Sk
Qingapen Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 = Property investment in the PRC
BRERAR BE 2B R BEREME
China Haidian Commercial Hong Kong HK$2 100 = Property investment in the PRC
Network Services Limited &/ 28T RABZENE
Haidian-Creation International  British Virgin US$1 100 - Investment holding in Hong Kong
Limited Islands E REBRERKR
RBRAHS
Sure Best Management Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 - Property investment in Hong Kong
& 18T NEBREMR
EBOHR Luxuries International ~ PRC HK$30,000,000 - 100 Manufacture and sale of
Co., Limited (“Ebohr”) H 30,000,000/ 7T watches and timepieces
RERORI)ERAR in the PRC
(TMKHEm 1) WP EIRER
HEER RS TED
Seti PRC US$45,525,860 - 100 Sale of timber products in
wi i 45,525,860% 7T the PRC
RPBEEAMER

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

R EER/IBFEAEEALFEL
XEIBRAREEEFEEARBD AR
BB AR - EERE - FHEMHE R A
ZERKESHRERNBRITR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES - COMPANY (continued)  21. Fi{LKiB A S — &2 T (#)

The Group also holds a 51% equity interest in Shunde AREBIFAERPBE Y 2 BET X KIER
Everbright Sunto Computer Co. Ltd. (“Sunto”), a EISABR A B ([NERE )51 %RAAER - KE
company established in the PRC through which the EREEAZATKRASE =  2HEEEE
Group had intended to be engaged in the manufacture METIGMAEED c MRZWE AT Z B8
and the sale of computer casing products with third BRELEBREREEBEETEARS © K
parties. Due to the non-disclosure of certain material EBEYIERFTIRETEER 2 A HEFEE
transactions by the Sunto’s management and its minority BHEME AR EZTEREIEREEER
shareholder, the Group had reasonable doubts as to the FTEBMAERE  FTUAARERRELWIERDZ %
reliability of the financial information provided by Sunto. & & E U JIB 38 K FA $£60,500,000 7% Tt ¢
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that DU EITFEER - At NEBRHEZ kL
Sunto is practically in a management dead-lock, and AANEMBARIZERE A E—NWANE
the recoverability of the Group’s investment in Sunto +-A=+—HULEERELEZEEE - It
and the amount due from Sunto of HK$60.5 million in SN IBBBIER ST —FBH 2 —BER
aggregate is doubtful. Accordingly, the Group’s interest ML WRESE  EREFNEEATBR
in this unconsolidated subsidiary has been fully provided KFIEBEMEARTK - NEFBTSHZE
for since the year ended 31 December 1998. In addition, NEHEREE—FIHE -

Sunto was put under a compulsory winding up pursuant
to a court order issued in 2001 and the winding up
process had not yet been completed up to the date of
issue of these financial statements. The Group will not
make any further investment in this subsidiary.

22. DUE FROM DISPOSAL GROUP - COMPANY 22, BWHEHAB XK — A QFH
The balance was due from the 2006 Disposal Group and R —ZETRNFHEAMNRKAERER R
was unsecured and interest-free. The balance has been B EEERFAZEREIZELH -

fully recovered by the Group during the year.

23. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY - 23. fi{i—XHEE4IEBER -EKQT
COMPANY

2007 2006
—EEF —TEX

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Unlisted investments, at cost  3E FH#R& - FAE 64,215 46,030

Due from a jointly-controlled entity f& Y — 53 T [R] 1252 41 = B2 /K 2N 210 173

64,425 46,203

Amounts due from the jointly-controlled entity are R —RAREHEBARAEERR &
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of B BEETERE-

repayment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE_—ZET+E+_A=+—HILEE

23. INTERESTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED ENTITY - 23. fi{f—H G4 SEEzs
COMPANY (continued)

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity at 31 December N-_FEFEL+E+_F=+—0H  HFEZHE
2007 are as follows: B EEET
Place/ Percentage Percentage Percentage
country of of ownership of voting of profit
incorporation interest power sharing  Principal activities and
Name MR BERR RERE FE{5%F  place of operation
a8 %/ AR BOl Bol Bolt EEEBREELE
Fuzhou Dartong Mechanic and PRC 49 50 49 Manufacture and sale of
Electronic Company Limited EP enamelled copper wire
(“Fuzhou Dartong”) in the PRC
BINKAEERNDEB AR R ERERHE
(TR AR REME
Fuzhou Dartong is the jointly controlled entity held by the BMRBANEERE c HEAEHEE - H
Group. lts financial statements have been incorporated B mRERLOGET ARNEBEE M
into the Group’s consolidated financial statements using WK o  AEBRMARBZ BED T AREELR
proportionate consolidation. The aggregate amounts B HEmE - VAT

relating to Fuzhou Dartong that have been included in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements are as

follows:

2007 2006
—EZ+F TEERE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET T
Non-current assets ERBEE 116,107 36,789
Current assets MENEE 84,864 128,484
Current liabilities mENARE (126,681) (112,494)
Net assets BEFE 74,290 52,779
Revenue WA 406,482 196,413

Other income and EU AR
financial income B UA 14,599 9,515
Total costs and expenses Pl @Y g (421,786) (201,641)
Income tax Frigat = -
(Loss)/Profit after income tax BRETISFLIE (B518), 57 (705) 4,287
As at 31 December 2007, Fuzhou Dartong provided a RS+ EFE+-_B=+— BMNKAB
guarantee of HK$26,596,000 (2006: HK$25,000,000) for BETAALTER S SR HIER
a bank loan granted to Citychamp, the joint venturer. 26,596,000/ 7T (ZZEE /N4 : 25,000,000/

JT) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE_—ZTT+E+-_A=+—HILEE

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATE 24, Fifb—REE QTR
Group Company
£ AN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELE “ETRF —EBLE “ETRF
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THL TER THL
At 1 January R—A—H 29,272 - 24,244 =
Acquisition of associate YR AR
- unlisted investment at cost —FEMHRE
MAE - 24,244 - 24,244
Share of associate’s results Bl —RE &
NGIES
- Excess of the Group’s share - REEER
of the net identifiable AHAEE
assets over cost of FEBLKE
acquisition (note) AR =58
(FizE) = 4,725 - -
- Profit before income tax — BTSRRI
eyl 2,212 486 - -
- Income tax — et = (183) = -
At 31 December R+ZR=1+—H 31,484 29,272 24,244 24,244
Note: This had been included in the share of results of Mizk: Bt ARZZEZE X NFRE—RBEQRE
associate in 2006. =)

Particulars of the associate at 31 December 2007 are as

R-_EBEEZ+tF+_A=+—8H

CBERRZ

follows: BRT
Particulars of Country of Percentage of
Name equity held incorporation interest held
=18 HEERER HMEYBER HEEEAMSEIL
Jiangsu Dartong Qingjiang M&E Paid up capital of PRC 25
Co., Ltd (“Jiangsu Dartong”) RMB25,000,000 =8
IERANBEIHESRA SRR
( TgR@m] ) AR#25,000,0007T
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE-_ZET+H+-A=+—HBIEE

24. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATE (continued)
The summarised financial information of the Group’s
associate extracted from its management accounts for

24. REHE QB FGRER (E)
UTRREEAKERERREBE_TTL
FTA=+—HLFEZEERB ZMH

the year ended 31 December 2007 are as follows: BRE

2007 2006

it —BENREF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

TET THTT

Assets BE 392,858 352,335
Liabilities afE (266,649) (235,525)
Revenue WA 1,414,020 935,338
Profit for the year INEE 5% F 8,848 13,661

25. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS - 25. At ESREE - &5

104

GROUP
2007 2006
—ETtHF —TTRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Listed equity investment, FRARE - ATFE (Hiia)
at fair value (note a) 853,380 -
Unlisted equity investment, SEETRAIRE - KAE (FisEb)
at cost (note b) 3,477 3,477
Provision for impairment BB (3,477) (3,477)
Total et 853,380 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

25. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS -
GROUP (continued)

Note:

(@)

Annual Report 2007

On 22 May 2007, the Group completed its disposals
of the 2006 Disposal Group to Citychamp. In return,
Citychamp allotted and issued 72,720,000 shares (the
“Consideration Shares”) and pay RMB36,000 to the
Group as the consideration (note 11.2).

On 29 July 2007, Citychamp declared a bonus issue of
0.836 share together with a cash dividend of RMBO.1
for every 10 Citychamp shares. The Group is eligible for
the dividends as it held the consideration shares then. In
August 2007, 6,079,392 Citychamp bonus shares and
cash dividends of RMB727,200 were received by the
Group. A dividend income totalling HK$48,383,000 was
recognised in the income statement for the year ended 31
December 2007 (2006: Nil).

All the 78,799,392 Citychamp shares held by the Group
are subject to a three-year lock up period commencing
from the date of issue of the Consideration Shares to May
2010. The directors are of the opinion that the expected
volatility and the effect of the three-year lock up period
shall be taken into account in determining the fair value
of the Citychamp shares held by the Group. In these
regards, the Group engaged Asset Appraisal Limited, an
independent professional qualified valuer, to evaluate the
fair value of the Citychamp shares held by the Group. The
valuation adopted market approach by reference to a list
of certain public companies listed in Hong Kong, which
are engaged in similar business operation and property
development portfolios. The selection of the comparable
companies is determined based on their products,
markets, earning, growth and nature of competition.
Based on the financial data of these selected comparable
companies, such as earnings per share, market
capitalisation and net profit margin, a weighted average
price/earning ratio is computed. Based on this weighted
average price/earning ratio, a fair value of RMB10.18 per
Citychamp share is recognised in the financial statements
of the Group. The above computation is arrived at based
on assumptions that there will be no major change in the
existing political conditions, legal conditions, economic
conditions, tax law, interest rates and exchange rates in
the location in which the business is operating.

The market value of the Citychamp shares at 31
December 2007 was amounted to HK$1,711,791,000.

BE—ZZLF+-RA=+—HLFE

B &

(@

25. AIMtHESHMEE - A58 (&)

RZTET+FRAZT=H AEEBETK
AERHEHE T NEEHR - EAR
8 - 73k Al 1A A< &= B e 3% J 817 72,720,000
BERE 5 (TRAEBRD ) R ARE36,0007T
(fisE11.2) ©

RZZE+LFELA=-+NB  BHEETI08
TR E R0.836 AL RIS E AR
0T - NEBBARNFERERG - WEE
MEERKRES -R-_ZTEZTLFENA - AEEE
W ER6,079,392% T I AL A% N 3R & B B A R ¥
727,2007C - REBE-ET+F+_A=+—
HIEFE - #8%0/548,383, ooo/%yzL? 2N
F ﬂﬁ)ZHﬁ WA B RIBERERFER ©

7N 5 | P+ 2 (78,799,392 B W Ak 10 78 &
ZEHMR > AREBRNETAREE-F
—EFRALRB=F -EERH REX
AEBEMBEMBNE  EERBEFRER
=FREHZYE - RUTE  AEEER
B BERAEEMEEFERR AR
AEBPFFF RN 2 A FE - HERRA
HEE  2EETRERURBLREAES
MEBRBAEZBFELTRE - I ELER
RINEREER 5 B BEREBF
MEED - BEZSEELTELBRARZ
Hﬁ""éﬂ Planghe AR - mELAERNE

SEGLMEFOmEE - REILEMEF
i’:]m AR RAKEZHBHREAEAXTE
iﬂﬁmﬂzﬂ%ﬁ)\ﬁﬂ%mmx LErETE

REEEBRERBEOAER AR
AR | B - FIE RS E K
B8 2 BRIEY, -

BERHR-BELF+=A=+t—A2ZH

{B/51,711,791,000% 7T °
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25. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS -
GROUP (continued)

BE-TTLE-AS+—HILER

25, AIMtHESRMEE - A58 (&)

(#8)

(@  (continued) (@)
Particulars of the available-for-sale financial assets REERAHEE SR EE 2 ERREER
of which the carrying amount of the Group’s interest BAEBEERBEZ10%FBAT ¢
exceeded 10% of the total assets of the Group are as
follows:
Percentage of
ownership interest
Country of Particulars of attributable to the Group
Name incorporation issued shares held XEERGES
=g FMRIER FMBERTROFES EEZzBEDH
2007 2006
Citychamp Dartong PRC Ordinary A Share 16.39% -
Company Limited B AR E AR
A BN BRA A
(o) The Group held an equity interest of 25.5% in &BE% () ARERBEREXARAMIEERAR(E

106

AAM TEBRAT (“Hefei Everbright”), a joint venture
company established in the PRC in 2003. Since 2004 the
Group’s investment in Hefei Everbright was accounted
for as a long term investment. In 2006, the investment
in Hefei Everbright was designated as available-for-sale
investment upon adoption of HKAS 39.

Having regard to the deteriorating financial positions
of Hefei Everbright, the directors are in the opinion
that the investment in Hefei Everbright is not likely to
be recoverable and accordingly, an impairment loss of
HK$3,477,000 had been charged to consolidated income
statement in 2005. As the financial position of Hebei
Everbright continued deteriorating during the year, there
was no change in the accumulated impairment as at 31
December 2007.

B KR]1)25.6% AR » ZRBRNR_E
Z=FAEPERIZAERF - BZTEN
Fie - FEBRBIEXKRZKREFIERBR
BAR - R-ZZTRF - WABFBGEL
£33k - NAREAKRZIREHRERA M
BRE -

EREEXAKZTHRAEE  ESRAEDT
KATGEREIRER AR ZZE  REZZTZE
R FERAEBEIRPINRIFERES3,477,000
BT o BRARXRERFE 2 stk #
gam R ZTTEF+=-A=+—AH2
BrHREL EEE) o
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26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. EA%IE - &Kk EMERE

RECEIVABLES
Group Company
-] RAH
2007 2006 2007 2006
g 3-8 o3 —TER “ZBtE —TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
THT THT TET THT
Deposits for the acquisition of Wi —BRE
an investment (note) Bt e (M) = 27,000 = 27,000
Other receivables HibEW R 70,678 20,348 29,592 5,183
Prepayments B HE 10,416 26,290 1,081 190
Deposits HEA 8,577 1,735 6,872 1,614
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—B=+—H
ZERAE 89,671 75,373 37,545 33,987
Less: Current portion R (87,277) (33,391) (37,545) (6,987)
Non-current portion FEEERF D 2,394 41,982 - 27,000

Note: In 2004, the Company entered into certain share WiE: RZZTZEWNF » ARRIEMBBILE=F

Annual Report 2007

purchase agreements with two independent third parties
(the “Vendors”) for the acquisition of an aggregate of
15% equity interests in Beijing Haidian Science Park
Development Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Haidian”). A deposit
of HK$27,000,000 (the “Deposit”) was paid by the
Company to the Vendors in 2006.

In March 2007, the Company and Jing Guan further
extended the completion date of the proposed
acquisition to 28 July 2007 as the approval from
the local authorities was not obtained. Details of the
proposed acquisition were set out in the Company’s
various press announcements during the period from
2 December 2004 to 29 March 2007 and the circular
dated 25 April 2005 to the Company’s shareholders.

As the proposed acquisition of Beijing Haidian was not
completed on 28 July 2007, the Vendors has agreed
to refund the Deposit to the Group. Accordingly, the
Deposit was reclassified as other receivable in current
asset at 31 December 2007 as it is to be recovered
within twelve months from the balance sheet date. The
Deposit was subsequently fully refunded to the Group in
January 2008.

—TRLEER

(TEA DA ETERNBE W - WEIER
BB REZZENARAR([ERUER])
EH1I5RBAER - RZTEREF - AR
B2 ME 7 X 75 € 27,000,000 7T ([ 5]
£]) -

RZZEZTLF=F AR TEEMTEEZR
ok -+ ZRA R E RS 8 i R Mk B 2 ek B B
E—FERE-_TT+FLA=ZF+N\B-F
AEZUBEZFBERN AR _ETWF
+-AZHEZZZE+F=A -+ HHH
FlEE 2 EREAMRETETARARKRE AL
AETRAFNA-+TRHHEZEBHE -

BN EREE B U RRER —EELF L
AZ+N\BAZEX  BEFRERASEREET
T - IRFTEBREE B+ ZEA AR
B SR _FTLFE+_A=1+—H " AH#
REAEH D ERREEENZ EAREYGK -
AeHEER -_TTENF-A2EBREAE
°
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27.

28.

108

INVENTORIES - GROUP

BE-TTLE-AS+—HILER

27. BE—X&H

2007 2006
—EZtHF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET T
Raw materials R 40,014 32,859
Work in progress TR 12,891 12,822
Finished goods BUR% T 89,121 68,743
142,026 114,424

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES - GROUP 28. EWESREE —AEH
2007 2006
—EZtHF ZERRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Trade and bills receivables FEWBER R EE 114,864 157,417
Less: Impairment losses B OREEE (70,812) (66,480)
Trade and bills receivables — net FEULBR &k 2 — F%8 44,052 90,937

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for certain customers, where payment
in advance is required. The credit period is generally
for a period of three months (2006: three months) for
major customers except for customers of the Group’s
discontinued operations where settlements were made
in accordance with the sales contract entered into
between the Group and the customers. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. Trade debtors with balances
that are more than three months overdue are required
to settle all outstanding balances before any further
credit is granted. In view of the aforementioned and the
fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

Impairment losses in respect of trade and bills
receivables are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against trade receivables directly. Movement in the
provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables is
as follows:

BRETEPHBERANTI  AEERAR
FAVZEEBRRETEREEIA  TER
F—RuUE=@EA(ZTT F: =@A)
ZEEH  EASECRIEREEBERPZ
AR ZRAREEREFPRI N ZHEANN
Ko BEATFPREFELR - BH=MEAMN
EZRBERREBA  RERBERE T
EEAMABEMBEREESRE - ER LLE
BERAEERKEFTSRAXETRZER
BAEREEFEERR o BRERRILTF
8 o

RN R 2 REBELABRER @ &
FAEBERNKAI KR EIEBHR - EiL
BT - REBBERNE KRR - &
WA R RB REREZET
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28. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES - GROUP (continued)

28. EWIRA R EE — AEE (&)

2007 2006

—EEtF ZETRF

HK$°000 HK$’ 000

FHET AT

At 1 January w—HA—H 66,480 63,924

Impairment loss charged to REZEERNRZBE

the income statement B8 86 -

Exchange realignment PEE 5 A 4,246 2,656

At 31 December mt+t—_A=1+—H 70,812 66,480
At each of the balance sheet date, the Group’s trade REFEER » AERZ RUERZ R EERTHE

and bills receivables were individually determined to
be impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties
and management assessed that only a portion of the
receivables is expected to be recovered. Consequently,
specific impairment provision was recognised. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing analysis of trade and bills receivables (including
amounts due from related party of trading in nature as
disclosed in note 43.1(v)) as at the balance sheet date,
based on invoice date, and net of provisions, is as

RIEERE © @RI ERERKFIRELESR
et =2FER - BEEMGT - B lEE
DIEMGIR - Eitt - ERERARIBERE
RE B E L FRERT A A ERMm

FE YRR & R (B FE M 5431 (v Pl FE YR B
REATEZFR)RNGEEARBERAHR
R R 2 R DTN T -

follows:
2007 2006
—EELF ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHT
1 to 3 months 123{E A 41,914 90,846
4 to 6 months 42618 A 2,138 40
7 to 12 months 7E12E A - 51
44,052 90,937
Ageing analysis of trade receivables that are not W BB 2 R AR ARE ST AT -
impaired is as follows:
2007 2006
—EELHF ZERERF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Neither past due nor impaired & A< %0 A sl R (B 41,914 90,846
1 - 90 days past due B8 HE1 —90H 2,138 40
91 - 180 days past due B Hi91—180H = 51
2,138 N
44,052 90,937
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28.

29.

110

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES - GROUP (continued)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
held any collateral over these balances.

Included in trade receivables are the following amounts
(net of impairment losses) denominated in a currency
other than the functional currency of the entity to which
it relates:

BE-TTLE-AS+—HILER

28.

FEWARSR R RiE - A KE (&)
HARBHSREBKREL R TP AR
ZERP RO B R -

EBHERRREZ BEHEETRAEE
BRERMNFEEZEFPAR - REBER
B BEEMRE ANEEERIEERE
£ IEBRERDBE QA BB E - &
BERZSERELRERE - AEEAE
Fhex FREHT A TAEMm -

YRR (FIBRRERBR) B TIAEHE
BZMEEEISN 2 EM BB 250

2007 2006
—ETLE ZEERF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AREF T

Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARB(T AR 41,409 90,937

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

29.

BAVEGFABRNABREZERHEE

Group Company
AEH AATH
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EELE | ZZETRF | ZEBELE | ZTTRF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&TT FHET FHET
Listed equity investment in BB EFTRE

Hong Kong, at market value wE - mE 44,178 48,765 20,130 37,627

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are

held for trading purposes.

BRAFEFAENEIEBEZEREENTA
FEEME -
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30. PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH 30.

Annual Report 2007

EQUIVALENTS

CEAFRERERRSEEY

Group Company
Py | b YN
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EEtE —ETRE “EEtE “EETRE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THERT FAT TR FHET
Cash at bank and in hand ROEFEIRE 82,362 39,836 29,905 3,812
Time deposits with original RER=MEAR
maturity less than 2B 2 TE
three months P4 - 4,892 - 4,892
82,362 44,728 29,905 8,704
Less: Deposits pledged for A {EBEERTT
short term banking facilities BRI ER - (4,892) - (4,892)
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBELZEY 82,362 39,836 29,905 3,812

Cash at bank earns interest at the floating rates based
on the daily bank deposits rates. Time deposits are
made for various periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-
term time deposit rates.

RITRESREBARTEFRAERABZFEF
RE R ERERZERHE-—HE=EA
TE BAREBEZABRSFRKME » WK
HERRRE B B TF KA G R -

Included in pledged deposits and cash equivalents are EEBFEFILESESEBYEETYLNEBE
the following amounts denominated in a currency other BIHAE B AN E A EZS%E -
than the functional currency of the entity to which it
relates:
2007 2006
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBTFTT
RMB AREE 46,686 35,612

All the above bank balances denominated in RMB
were placed with the banks in the PRC. RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for other currencies through the banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business in the
PRC.

—BELFFH

R EZBRITHEFAARE REMFR S IfE
T ARBASERELBREMER - R
i - RETEERINEE IR N AEE %E&
NEEERTE  AREAERRERTEE
TOEEXEBZRITBARELBRASEME
HE o
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31.

32.

112

TRADE PAYABLES - GROUP

Ageing analysis of trade payables (including amounts
due to related parties with trading in nature) as at the
balance sheet dates is as follows:

BE-TTLE-AS+—HILER

31. BRI —FAEH
JENEER(RIEENEEEA LT Z2E SHFIE)

A :E/v)\-
NEE

BZREDITT

2007 2006
—EEtLF ZEER
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
0 - 30 days 0£30H 19,135 45,155
31 - 60 days 31260H 14,350 727
61 — 90 days 61290H - -
Over 90 days HR3E90H 12 801
33,497 46,683
Included in trade payables are the following amounts FENERRBRETIANEEER ZIEEE N
denominated in a currency other than the functional SNz B BB R ¢
currency of the entity to which it relates:
2007 2006
—EEtHF ZERRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTFT
RMB AR 31,487 46,683
Trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are FERT BRI T E - —RZBRE60BRHIRZ
normally settled on 60-day terms. e
OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 32. HttEN MR EEH
Group Company
rEH AATH
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EELE | ZZETRF | ZEBELE | ZTTRF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&TT FHET FHET
Accruals fEETE R 56,061 12,322 1,265 1,989
Other payables E M ERTR 39,706 46,301 13,587 10,858
95,767 58,623 14,852 12,847

Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an
average term of three months.

HiENFIA AR - BRFHB=MEA -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HItFE

33. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - GROUP 33. FTESMIE—KEEH
2007 2006
—EEtHE —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#xT FHET
Current liability mENAaE

— Forward contracts for the —BEIAZEBED

purchase of copper 5,017 —

The Group entered into forward contracts for the
purchase and sell of copper and recorded unrealised
loss of HK$5,017,000 (2006: Nil) for the year. The
fair values of the derivative financial instruments are
determined with reference to the quoted market price of
the instruments at balance sheet date.

The following is a summary of forward contracts as at
31 December 2007:

AEBFVEERZERBEL  TRFRE
BAREIREIE5,017,0008 (BT NF :
) PTESRMTAZAFEDNSEREER
TEFHMEET -

MTAR_TTLF+_A=1+—HEHA4
HZHE -

2007 2006
—EELHF ZETRF
Copper cathodes SRR
Purchase A
- tonne — g 1,800 -
— average price (RMB/tonne) —EHB(ARET, HE) AR ¥RMB62,150 -
— maturity —FI|EAH February 2008 to -
November 2008
—EENFZAZE
—EENFE+—A8
Sell =]
- tonne — WA 600 -
- average price (RMB/tonne) — B (ANEIT, ) AR #RMB55,565 -
— maturity = March 2008 to -

Annual Report 2007 —ZELFEf
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

34. BORROWINGS 34. BE
Group Company
TEE ARQF]
Effective 2007 2006 2007 2006
interest —BELE | —ZBETF | ZBELFE | —ZTTREF
rate HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BMF = FET FH&T FHET FHAT
Non-current
FERNHA
Bank borrowings Floating 6.3% - 55,348 - 55,348
RITEE p: 4=
Current
B HA
Bank borrowings Floating 5.9% - 6.3% 26,272 52,652 - 3,652
RITHEE R
Bank borrowings Fixed 5.5% - 7.3% 86,543 63,701 - =
RITIEE EE
112,815 116,353 - 3,652
Total borrowings 112,815 171,701 - 59,000
HmEE
As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s bank loans were R-ZBZ+FE+-_A=+—H  KEBIET
secured by: BEFA TS EEER
() a legal charge over certain of the Group’s prepaid () AEBETEMTIHEERBRMALR
land lease payments and buildings situated in the FEEFZETHRLB(ME11.5 19Kk
PRC (notes 11.5, 19 and 17); 17)
(i) a legal charge over certain of the Group’s (i) AEEBETEREWEZEATHL (M
investment properties (note 18); and 18) s &
(iiiy guarantees granted by a director of the Company (iy AAR—BEZERETEUE=FEL
and certain independent third parties. ZHER

114 China Haidian Holdings Limited 1 EEREBREREA T



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt 5 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-—ZET+E+-_A=+—HILEE

34. BORROWINGS (continued) 34. HE (&)

As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s bank loans were Ef\_ggti—f— —A=+—8 KEE
repayable as follows: EZHAR AT EHES -
Group Company
rEE NG
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF —ETLF ZERERF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHET FHET FAT
Within one year —F R 112,815 116,353 - 3,652
In the second year F-F - 3,652 - 3,652
In the third to fifth year F=FZEZERF - 10,955 - 10,955
Repayable within five years AFEAERER 112,815 130,960 - 18,259
After the fifth year FERF%R - 40,741 - 40,741
112,815 171,701 - 59,000
Included in borrowings of the Group are the following AREBEERETINNEBERE 2L EE

LS B R B 2 5ROR

amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which it relates:

2007 2006

—EZtHF ZERRF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AREFIT

RMB AR 106,046 85,800
Annual Report 2007 —ZETHFER 15
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

35.

36.

116

DUE TO RELATED COMPANIES

As at 31 December 2007, amounts due to related
companies are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand. One of the related companies has
agreed not to demand repayment of the amount of
HK$191,490,000 due to it from the Group until such
time when repayment will not affect the Remaining
Group’s ability to repay other creditors.

As at 31 December 2006, amounts due to related
companies of HK$180,000,000 were unsecured, interest
bearing at rates ranging between 5.0% and 5.6% per
annum and repayable on 18 December 2007. One of the
related companies has agreed to extend the repayment
date for the due amount of HK$144,000,000 to 18

BE—ZZLF+-RA=+—HLFE

35.

A RBEXRRXK
R-ZFTLE+_A=1t—H ENARE
RAIZRFBELR  2ERARERE
B HPF—RXEMEQRFCREETER
TEEREMBERABERRZENZIBER
T T ERARLEEEE191,490,0008 T2
RHK

R-ZEERNF+_A=+—H ENEH
BN A Z R A180,000,000/8 T AEE

%EF }KE%U}‘:5OF:&56J*D+/%\ ’ /,\ﬁ/\_
ZELETA+NBEE - EEP*%%_E%

BRRRAE  WAREMBRENTEUR
“EELFE T AT NABRZATEERRK

December 2008 when the Group is not financially viable 144,000,000/87T * Bl EFHMEE —ZT T
to make the repayment on or before 18 December 2007. NE+=—_A+NB -
DEFERRED TAX 36. IELEHIR
Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary BB TR EEIRaEEEATERR
differences under the liability method using the principal 17.5%( ZEENE - 17.5% ) /ED EIEHE -
taxation rate of 17.5% (2006: 17.5%).
Movement on the deferred tax liabilities/(assets) is as FEIERIBRE(BE)S8HI| BT
follows:
Deferred tax liabilities EEHREAE
2007 2006
—EELHF ZERERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
At 1 January ®n—H—H = 794
Exchange difference PE =% - 32
Deferred tax charged to KRBT NFHE H%‘J
the results of the 2006 HEEHG IR
Disposal Group I8 = 618
Transferred to liabilities directly B Z= B 48 A1 e
associated with disposal HEZHEER
group classified as held for BEEEGAE
sale (note 11) (FFzE11) = (1,444)
At 31 December Rt+—-—A=+—8H = -

China Haidian Holdings Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HItFE

36. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 36. IELEFIIE (&)

Deferred tax assets EEHEESE
2007 2006
—EEtF ZETRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
At 1 January wn—A—H 1,062 1,021
Exchange difference EH ZRE 68 41
At 31 December Ww+=-—A=+—H 1,130 1,062

As at 31 December 2007, the Group has tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of HK$87,891,000 (2006:
HK$76,221,000), subject to the agreement of Inland
Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not
been recognised in respect of these losses as these
losses were incurred by the companies that have been
loss-making for some time.

During the year, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group’s
subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional
tax should such amounts be remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders during the year.

Annual Report 2007 —ZELFEf

N_BT+E+-A=1+—0 AE£EERE
BEATIARE87,891,0008 T ( ZEZ X
F 1 76,221,000/87L) « BREEMREBRE -
AAEREEEREAR Z BEERTG
o AREARBEEBEZARCHREEE—
BEE MUERZEEHERRAEAETH
BEE -

FA - ANEELEEAEARERELTHEA
BE REA/MERSEL  AEEITFERR
I — S HNRIIAEZ BEE - WEARE
ETHERRREELZ & ENIMHR
I8 o

FA - ARRALERARMEBRR S EEMA
AEEFAAEREL -
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37.

118

DEFERRED INCOME 37. ELEWA
2007 2006
—EEtHE —EEREFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#xT FHET
At 1 January ®n—A—AH - 177,906
Exchange difference MEH ZRE = 7,117
Transferred to liabilities directly 3 ZE S AFEHE Y HE
associated with assets in MR EEERERERE
disposal group classified (FFEE11)
as held for sale (note 11) - (185,023)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~” - =

Deferred income of HK$177,906,000 are in fact
government grant received in 2005 for partial refund of
land premium in respect of a piece of land for a property
redevelopment project situated in Beijing, the PRC. No
other contingencies are attached to such grants.

As at 31 December 2006, this balance had all been
classified as liabilities directly associated with assets in
disposal group classified as held for sale (note 11).

There were no government grants recognised as income
during the year ended 31 December 2007 and 31
December 2006.

E-TTRFZELRA177,906,0008 T E
BERBE#EDE - DURBEILR—IEY
FEREBERH ZMREA D HBERRK - ZFMBD
& WM A B ARG o

75/\\\:27/\$+ H= “f’ H - J:L ﬁ%%
MAOBABELE L EHANEEEEEWN
aEFIFE11) -

\\%I:{ tf‘f+ H + El&—? =
NETZRA=+—BILFE - W &EBUTH B
SRR BN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HItFE

38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. |7
2007 2006
—EELF —EETRF
Number Number
of shares of shares
gnig - gE] f&inEk B
’000 HK$’°000 ’000 HK$’000
T FET Tz FET
Authorised: JERE
Ordinary shares of FHEEO.10
HK$0.10 each BITZ EEAR 2,000,000 200,000 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BERITREE
At 1 January nw—A—H 1,792,031 179,203 1,544,831 154,483
Placement of new shares Bic &5 ¥ A% - - 247,200 24,720
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,792,031 179,203 1,792,031 179,203

39.

Annual Report 2007

On 8 June 2006, the Company placed 247,200,000
new shares of HK$0.10 each at a price of HK$0.20 per
share.

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 25 May 2001 whereby the directors of the
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
employees of the Group, including directors of any
company in the Group, to take up options to subscribe
for shares of the Company. The share option scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years
ending on 24 May 2011, after which no further options
will be granted. For options granted on or after 1
September 2001, the exercise price of options is the
highest of the nominal value of the shares, the closing
price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on the date
of grant and the average closing price of the shares
on the Stock Exchange for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant. Each option
gives the holder the right to subscribe for one share.

—TRLFEH

39.

RZFBEERENANE  RRAFEEK0.20
B IT 2 (BIR AL E247,200,0000% &A% FE{E0.10
BT AR -

LR BERNESHE

ARARR-_EE-—FAA - T+HBRMH—E
BARBBIROER S - Fitt - AAFEFE
EiE o ARIBEEAEEREE (BEAEEIE
RAIKNE AR ZESR)RNEERBRME
NREARAB L - BEBBRMOETERN
BEE T ——FRAA-+WABR+HF—HA
B ZBRTABROELRBRMOE - B
RE-ZBE—FNA-—HIAEREZELER
BlOEMS  BERBROBZITEES
BOEE RELEBERBEBROEE B RN
FERGE X AT 2 W B DA ) BRI BB R BB AR
MHEE BRI EZ 3B RO ERHZ ¥
WHBz&EE - SHELERBROERT
FH ANRENRE — At
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39.

40.

120

SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION
(continued)

Pursuant to the amendments (the “New Rules”) to
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, any options granted
after September 2001 must comply with the provisions
of the New Rules. If the Company wishes to grant
options to its directors or other eligible participants in
future, a new share option scheme in compliance with
the New Rules is to be approved and adopted by the
shareholders of the Company in a general meeting.
Since the adoption of the New Rules, no new share
option scheme has been approved nor adopted.

During the year, no share options were granted or
exercised and there were no outstanding options at 31
December 2007 (2006: Nil).

RESERVES

Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein during the year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

In accordance with the PRC regulations, certain of the
Group’s subsidiaries registered in the PRC are required
to transfer part of their profits after tax to the statutory
reserve fund, before profit distributions are made. The
amounts of the transfers are subject to the approval
of the boards of the directors of these companies, in
accordance with their joint venture agreements and/or
articles of association. The statutory reserve fund is non-
distributable and has restricted use.

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the acquisition
of subsidiaries in prior years remain eliminated against
the consolidated reserves as explained in note 20 to the
financial statements.

BE-TTLE-AS+—HILER

39.

40.

DR pAERNESHEE

REBEETRUFITEZETFHRA) - A
ER_ZZ-FNLARKRHZEERERN
BYAT AR Z R WARRER
KAEEFFHMAERSEERLELR
BIROE  RISAKARBBRNBERRE
BEERRATT AR RN Z 3B RIBA D 1
T8l o BERAFTRBILAZKE - I M AL SR
TR EERBA D LS -

TR HEELRBROEERHRITE
RZZETHE+ZA=+—H  BEIEH
RITEELERBROE(ZTTRF  £E) -

(A

FEH
AEERAFEZFRBEELEBAEZHOH
RiFEEREBRT -

WRPBARERG - & TRHBAREEMZ
RS BB AR &N 2 IKAT - ARG EH
PHEREENERELEFHFEES - BE
BMARRSARZESERTAZEE NS
R/ ARERAAEE - FERBEEET
Aok - BEREBMRS -

AN T RR M 20 PR - ROIBEFEW
BHEBARMEEREZE THEDNES
LTSN -
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BE-TTLE-AS+—HILER

40. RESERVES (continued) 40. FEE)
Company ¥iINNE|
Share
premium Retained
account profits Total
B EER REER W
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2006 RZEERF—A—H = 268,029 268,029
Premium on new shares s E 23,700 - 23,700
Net loss for the year NEEEIBFEE
(note 12) (FFEE12) - (6,824) (6,824)
At 31 December 2006 and AR -ZTZ,NFE
at 1 January 2007 +-A=+—8x
—ETTLF—-H—H 23,700 261,205 284,905
Net loss for the year AREEZEEFEE
(note 12) (PfFEE12) - (16,805) (16,805)
At 31 December 2007 R-EELE
+=—A=+—8H 23,700 244,400 268,100
41. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS . REHERE
411 At 31 December 2007, the total future minimum M1 RZBEZELF+_A=+—H8 ' RET
sublease payments expected to be received by AIFESH 2 DALY - NS B TR H R AR
the Group under non-cancellable subleases by the ZARGIERSHAERIBATENT
Group is as follows:
2007 2006
—EELF ZEERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFET
Within one year —F R 4,795 9,068
In the second to fifth years F-_EEZFHE 26,709 30,335
After five years A% 39,812 49,006
71,316 88,409

The Group leases certain of its investment
properties under operating lease arrangements,
with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one

to twenty years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HItFE

41. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued) 41, REIAEEER)

412 At 31 December 2007, the total future minimum 12 R-EBEZE+E+—-_A=+—H ' BET
lease payments under non-cancellable operating A 2 IREFRY - NEBEN Z RK
leases are payable by the Group as follows: HEFAERIBAZENT ¢

Group Company
AEH b N
2007 2006 2007 2006
“EETLE | ZETRF | ZEBELE | ZTTRF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET FE T FET
Remaining Group: BRTER:
Within one year —FR 3,379 4,787 2,506 4,189
In the second to F_FZRE
fifth years FRHE 24,075 2,192 22,029 -
27,454 6,979 24,535 4,189
Disposal Group: HEMAR :
Within one year —FR - 451 - -
In the second to F_FZRE
fifth years FHEF - - - -
= 451 = -
Total “at 27,454 7,430 24,535 4,189
The Group and the Company lease certain offices REBNAQNRIREBELKERNTHEASET
and factory premises under operating lease PBRAENTRDE  ZEMHOZETFHAN
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated FT—FE2+ELE -

for terms ranging from one to ten years.

In addition, the Group is required to pay an annual o KREBE — QWM ZFE2ZTW_F
fee in respect of a leasehold land in the PRC from I BEREAPEz—EBHELHIFF
the year 1992 up to the year 2042 with a 20% B FEBRAFTHEN20% - FA - AEEX
increment for every five years. During the year, an HEEA32,0008 T ( ZEZ/RF © 420,000
annual fee of HK$432,000 (2006: HK$420,000) was TO)ERER AR R o

charged to the consolidated income statement of

the Group.
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42. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 42. BARKIE
Group REE
2007 2006
—EELE —EERF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET T
Contracted, but not EHEREES: T
provided for
Remaining group: BHTER :
Acquisition of Beijing Haidian WAL R
(note 26) (FFE26) - 65,621
Purchases of property, BEYE - BB MEE
plant and equipment 13,934 -
13,934 65,621
Disposal group: HEHRR
Acquisition of Beijing Haidian B AL SR
(note 27) (FFE27) - 25,934
Construction work for properties R ¥ 2 iZE TR
under development - 106,828
- 132,762
Total commitments, contracted FIEAA%E - 2514
but not provided for BREE 13,934 198,383
Total capital commitments B AR EEE 13,934 198,383
Company AN
2007 2006
—EEtE —EEREFE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Contracted, but not BRTNEREE
provided for
Acquisition of Beijing Haidian WAt RO R
(note 26) (FF3E26) - 65,621
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43.

124

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

43.1 Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements, the following transactions were
carried out with related parties:

BE—ZZLF+-RA=+—HLFE

43. EREALRS
431 BRAMBEHRREMITOAEEEIN - K
BEAREATETATRS ¢

SH

()  Sales of goods () HEE
2007 2006
—EELF TEERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Sales of goods to the joint venturer [[I&ZHHEEY 310,319 195,061

Sales to the joint venturer of the Group’s

¢’Aﬂ—%%$7ﬁr7@jﬁi\%$2$%

jointly-controlled entity, of which a director of HEAEFESER 2EE T AEN

the Company is also a director. ’% °

(i) Purchases of goods (i) BEEY
2007 2006
—EEHF —ERERF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHT FHT
Purchases of goods from EEHEEED

the joint venturer 761 966

Purchases from the joint venturer of the
Group’s jointly controlled entity, of which a
director of the Company is also a director.

$“ﬂ*% EENREEEZAR

HAZEHERZA

g o

LR ERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-—ZET+E+-_A=+—HILEE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
43.1 Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the
financial statements, the following transactions were

43. EREALR S (#)
431 BRAB B HmREMI S

DT EE N

AEBECREBEALTETATRS

carried out with related parties (Continued): (#&) -

(i) Purchases of plant and machinery (i)  FEE SRS
2007 2006
—EELF —EERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET

Purchases of plant and machinery A& % 5 &S M E

from joint venturer i - 352

Purchases of plant and machinery from the

$“ﬂﬁ¢ —REFREEFZA

joint venturer of the Group’s jointly controlled HRAZEGNEE 2 EEHMEER
entity, of which a director of the Company is lﬁ?ﬂ%&&% °
also a director.
(iv) Rental income (iv) FHzHA
2007 2006
—EELHF —EERE
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FaxT FET
Rental income received B S WA 771 642
This was received from a company of which a LB TIRAARE] —REENE
director of the Company is also director and EE2ARWMBESAFEAEA
this was charged at HK$64,000 per month on 64,0008 7L (ZFZF/NF : 52,000
average (2006: HK$52,000). BIT) °
(v) Outstanding balances arising from sales ) HEEYZKENESREGAELK
of goods included in trade receivables as AR (R H) -
appropriate:
2007 2006
—EELF ZEEXRE
HK$°000 HK$’ 000
FaExT FET
Receivables from related party EREREALTRK
— joint venturer —HEIEHIE R
=Xy 14,080 80,522
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=" 4

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 43. BRAEALTR S (')
431 Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the 431 BABBBREEMIE D A EEZ I -

financial statements, the following transactions were
carried out with related parties (Continued):

(vii Outstanding balances included in other

AEECREBEALTETATRS
(&) :

() B ARMEBERAZRENEE -

receivables:
2007 2006
—EZtHF ZERRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Receivables from a subsidiary of BK—REEHZ
a joint venturer i OVEEWNEIDNE N 5,117 -

(vii) Interest paid by the 2007 Discontinued Timber
Business for the loan from related companies

i) —FELFERILRTREERERH
BREHREZ BT FIE

2007 2006
—EELF —EERF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FaxT FHET
Loan interest paid to MBEBREARSfNZ
related companies BHHE 9,756 337

(viii) Acquisition of an associate

In April 2006, the Group entered into an
agreement with the joint venturer and an
independent third party for the acquisition
of 25% equity interest in Jiangsu Dartong
from these two parties for a consideration of
HK$24,244,000 (note 24). In September 20086,
the acquisition was completed and Jiangsu
Dartong has been accounted for an associate
of the Group using the equity method since
that date.

(ix) Acquisition of investment properties
During the year, the Group acquired an
investment property from a company
controlled by a close family member of a
director of the Company at a consideration of
HK$10,332,000 (note 18).

(vii) HehE— B E 2\ F]

RZZFEZRFMOA AEEEGE
A R—EBIE=ZREI N B [
MK E] K7 LA (E 24,244,000
TC U BB T Bk KB 25% IR AN 4 2= (B
F24) c WER—_ZEZNFNLARE
K B%BR  TIHRABERER
EERAEE —REE R RV -

(ix) WEREYE
FR - AEEPIH{E10,332,0007
TRAARBER ZERATEHNA
BB E W (MRE18) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE-_ZET+H+-A=+—HBIEE

43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 43. HEEA TR S ()

43.2 Key management personnel compensation:

Included in staff costs are key management
personnel compensation and comprises the
following categories:

432 EEEEBAB ZMHE

TREBRABZHEFABRIRARA
BIEATER -

2007 2006

—EELF ZETRF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FHT

Short term employee benefits HEEBEF 8,110 8,132
Post-employment benefits BEEL 2R 84 96
8,194 8,228

The key management represents the executive
directors of the Group. Further details of directors’
emoluments are included in note 16 to the financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

44. DISPOSALS OF THE 2006 DISPOSAL GROUP 44, HE-ZSXEFEHEHR
As mentioned in note 1, on 22 May 2007, the Group has WK F1Fr  R—_EBEZE+FR A -+
completed the disposals of its equity interest in the 2006 H AEBERKHEER-_ZSZENEHE
Disposal Group. Particulars of the disposal transaction AR ZREAREZ - HEXSFEBET -
are as follows:
HK$’000
FHET
Net assets disposed of: FriE&EEFE .
Property, plant and equipment Y - B REE 8,348
Investment properties BB 32,551
Properties under development BRERPYZE 1,001,745
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables A RUIR 712 REA UG 66,963
Trade receivables U IR K 5,470
Pledged deposits [ IER 8,263
Cash and cash equivalents REeERREEEY 304,725
Trade payables FEATER K (92,445)
Deposits received from customers clEFEI® (837,848)
Other payables and accruals EmEA R R ETEA (52,901)
Tax payables JEA IR (9,783)
Borrowings BE (527,496)
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIEEE (1,474)
Deferred income EFEWA (188,799)
Amount due to related companies B BEATIRK (10,449)
206,870
Minority interests DR R = (30,194)
Tax on gain on disposal of the 2006 Disposal Group HE =TT RFHEARNEE
Z TR 20,505
197,181
Gain on disposals of the 2006 Disposal Group HEZETNFHEMA
(note 11) (fzE11) 366,806
Total consideration HRE 563,987
Satisfied by (note): LA A A (i EE)
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHEERMEE 563,950
Cash Re 37
563,987
An analysis of net outflow of cash and BENE_SETFHEMERN RS
cash equivalents in respect of the disposals of LESEBYzRERE F5E
the 2006 Disposal Group is as follows: ST
Cash consideration received BYCRERE 37
Cash and bank balances disposed of BHER® MIRTTER (304,725)
(304,688)
Note: At 22 May 2007, Citychamp allotted and issued Mz : RZTZZLFRAA-T=H BHRALE

72,720,000 shares (the “Consideration Shares”) and
paid RMB36,000 to the Group as the consideration. % 1) B+ ARE36,000TEARE - K
The Consideration Shares are subject to a three-year BERNEZERERFTHRHERR=-F2
lock up period commencing in the date of issue of the HEHMR - EFRE  REERERS
Consideration Shares. The directors are of the opinion RZEBEZLFRAAZFT B2 ATFER -
that the expected volatility and the effect of the three- EEREBEIEBR-FRERITE -3
year lock up period shall be taken into account in mE - AEEMAFERRGO 2 AFED
determining the fair value of the Consideration Shares REBEYEER(GHEMEETEBRNABR
at 22 May 2007. In these regards, the fair value of NEIRTEEER LS ©

the Citychamp shares held by the Group have been

revaluated by Asset Appraisal Limited, an independent

professional qualified valuer, on the market approach.

5 fic 3% K 2 1772,720,000 % A 9 (TR (B AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 45, BiIEKREEEERKE

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise
bank loans and cash and short term deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables,
trade payables, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, other receivables and other payables,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board has reviewed and
agreed policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

45.1 Interest rate risk

The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost
using a mix of fixed and variable rate debts. The
Group’s policy is to maintain between 30% and
80% of its interest-bearing borrowings at fixed
interest rates. The Group’s fair value interest rate
risk relates primarily to fixed-rate borrowings.
The Group currently had not implemented any
procedures to hedge its interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in
market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s
debt obligations with a floating interest rate.

At 31 December 2007, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
decrease/increase the Group’s profit after tax and
retained profits by approximately HK$131,000
(2006: HK$540,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for both
derivative and non-derivative financial instruments in
existence at that date. The 50 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates
over the period until the next annual balance sheet
date. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2006.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-—ZET+E+-_A=+—HILEE

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 45, Bi R ESEEENBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

45.2 Foreign currency risk 45.2 HhE B By

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
arising from various currency exposures, primarily
with respect to RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises
from commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities. In addition, the conversion
of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.

Substantial portion of the Group’s revenue and
costs are denominated in RMB. Thus, when RMB
strengthens in value against the HK$, as has
occurred in 2007 and 2006, the Group’s operating
margins are positively impacted. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at
the balance sheet date to a reasonably possible
change in RMB exchange rate, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before
income tax (due to changes in the fair value of

AEEEHZREE ZINERKR B
RBREEXRAARE - SMNERBRKREE
ERXGREREERAR - I Hig
AR RHNERE ST BT B8 A 2 S
BEE " 751 AR ) B2 AR A5

AEBMABOBARKRNAARERE
iz o Ft - WARBELETM _TTL
FRZZFERFRIE  AEBZED
BENBEREM LA - NREBERRYE
BEITINESIPIR o

TRETBRRAAEEMARERSIE
AEBNGEE R ZBRAEHRANEN (R R
EREENBBEATERZHMAE) RAE
EREHARBERAGEHIRCAEE
B) 2 GURE DA

monetary assets and liabilities) and the Group’s

equity.
2007 2006
—EEHF TEERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTFT
Trade and bills receivables TEWBE T R EE 41,409 90,937
Cash and cash equivalents e RESZEY 46,686 35,612
Trade payables FERTRRRX (31,487) (46,683)
Borrowings BE (106,046) (85,800)
Due to related companies FERTREE R R R K (196,752) (180,000)
(246,190) (185,934)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-—ZET+E+-_A=+—HILEE

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 45, BIREMESEEENBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
45.2 Foreign currency risk (continued)
A 5% strengthening/weakening of HK$ against

45.2 HhEE R B (48)
BRINABTHAARKERRBHELEER

RMB as at the respective balance sheet dates ﬂjﬂ’ﬁk5% (mp&%ﬁg&@&g%g
would increase/(decrease) profit after income SEEEE) - [ﬁ@ﬁﬁ%@q@,ﬁﬁljﬂﬂgT

tax (due to changes in the fair value of monetary
assets and liabilities) by the amount shown below.
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in
particular interest rates, remain constant.

75'J§§Eiﬁﬂﬂ(_ﬁ)ﬁid\) DT EREFT
ﬁ/ﬁ\@lﬁtﬁﬂrﬁﬁ_ﬂ‘m .

2007 2006
—EEtE TEERE
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FHT

Profit for the year: REERF
5% strengthening in HK$ BTTIER F 5% 13,095 9,297
5% weakening in HK$ A ITIE R T EK5% (13,095) (9,297)

45.3 Credit risk 453 5 ER K

The Group trades only with recognised and zlx;%{iéﬁi%%iﬁﬁ}zfﬁzﬁiﬁﬁéi
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy o REBYHEALITEREESHZ
that all customers who wish to trade on credit %}f'i’j,,\ BIEETZER o I - K

terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad
debts is not significant.

SETEETREGR GRS - REMEY
ZERRBRILTERK o

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of
these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement
for collateral.

The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect of
the financial guarantees at the balance sheet date
was HK$13,032,000 (2006: HK$12,250,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 HE-—ZET+E+-_A=+—HILEE

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
45.4 Liquidity risk

45. BH5E e E IR B AR R BUR (#)

45.4 B E = ER

The Group manages its liquidity needs by carefully AREEFBEEEIRASHABE S
monitoring scheduled debt servicing payments DERHEERESLE  UEEBER
for long-term financial liabilities as well as cash- HELSEE  c AEFRHAERAELZHE
outflows due in day-to-day business. Liquidity £ FERK - EBIORRBTHR Z E8 R
needs are monitored on a day-to-day basis. Long- BESENRTIILATE o

term liquidity needs for a 360-day lookout period

are identified monthly.

The Group maintains mainly cash to meet its
liquidity requirements for up to 30-day periods.
Funding for long-term liquidity needs is additionally
secured by an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities.

AEBETZFMAR
MZRBEEFL -
BBRTE TS R A

THFERZ 308 H
RERPERFTK
m/\ﬂﬁj:m'f/\ °
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As at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 20086, R-_EBEEZ+F+_A=+—HBHR=_ZZ
the Group’s financial liabilities have contractual NFE+ZA=+—"H ZxXEBZLE8E
maturities which are summarised below: BIRELHNTYEE R :
Repayable
on demand
(note 35) Within 3 4t06 7t012
RERER months months months Over 1 year
(H&E35) MEAR 4Z6f8A 7Z12f8A BB1E
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAT TAL TAT FAT
At 31 December 2007 W-ET+4F
+-A=1-
Trade payables JEHEFY%‘K - 33,497 - - -
Derivative financial fTESRIA
instruments (on net (REHEERE)
settlement basis) - 1,180 2,116 1,721 -
Borrowings e - 48,166 4,170 60,479 -
Due to related EREBELNT
companies E 209,311 - - - -
209,311 81,663 4,170 60,479 -
At 31 December 2006 RZTENE
+-A=1+-8
Trade payables AR - 46,683 - - -
Borrowings BE = 8,303 9,800 98,250 55,348
Due to related EREBERT
companies R 180,000 - - - =
180,000 54,986 9,800 98,250 55,348
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 45, BRI ESEEENBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

45.5 Fair value risk 45.5 N FE Rk

The fair value of the Group’s current financial assets
and liabilities are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because of the immediate or
short term maturity. The fair values of non-current
financial assets and liabilities were not disclosed
because the carrying values were not materially
different from their fair values.

45.6 Commodity price risk

The Group’s exposure to commodity price risk
relates principally to the market price fluctuation
in copper which can affect the Group’s results of
operations.

The Group entered into forward contracts for
the purchase of copper as set out in note 33. All
forward commodity contracts can only be carried
out at the approval of the management. In addition,
the price range of the forward commodity contracts
was closely monitored by the management.

At 31 December 2007, a reasonably possible
increase/decrease of 10% in commodity price, with
all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s profit after tax and retained
profits by approximately HK$3,592,000.

45.7 Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes
arising from equity investments classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss and available-for-sale financial assets. Other
than unlisted equity investment held for strategic
purposes, all of these investments are listed.

Decisions to buy or sell financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are based on daily monitoring
of the performance of individual securities and other
industry indicators, as well as the Group’s liquidity
needs. Listed investments held in the available-for-
sale financial assets were based on their longer
term growth potential and are monitored regularly
for performance against expectations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 45, Bi R ESEEENBE (&)
POLICIES (continued)

45.7 Equity price risk (continued) 45.7 RERE (&)
The following table indicates the approximate TRERDE AL AT EF AT E
change in the Group’s profit after tax and BremEE TTBREZRERALE
consolidated equity in response to reasonably BAREEHRMEAENEAHEES
possible changes in the share prices of the listed MEEY FHIRE A& E FTHAF
investments classified as financial assets at fair THAR SB[ E) - WARER
value through profit or loss and the price/earning BB R AR B RS 2T E -

ratios of comparable listed companies of the listed
investment classified as available-for-sale financial
assets to which the Group has significant exposure
at the balance sheet date.

2007 2006
—EELF ZERRF
Effect on Effect on
profit after profit after
tax and Effect on tax and Effect on
retained investment retained investment
profits  revaluation profits revaluation
HERBiIE reserve HERT& reserve
BARRE HREEM | 2MRREB HIREE
BRz¥E @#FEZEE | BIEE [FBEZRE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET F#&T FHT FHT
Financial assets at fair BAFERA
value through A EIE 2
profit or loss: TREEE -
Increase in the share B RE
prices of the listed EFH5%
investments by 5% 2,209 - 2,438 -
Decrease in the share TR EZIRE
prices of the listed T #£5%
investments by 5% (2,209) - (2,438) -
Available-for-sale At ESE
financial assets: BE
Increase in price/earning Al T
ratios of comparable UNGIDIPEES
listed companies by 5% +F5% - 42,669 - -
Decrease in price/earning AJ &AL ETH
ratios of comparable UNCIPEES
listed companies by 5% T¥5% - (42,669) - -
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

45.8 Summary of financial assets and liabilities by

category
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
assets and liabilities excluding assets and liabilities
in disposal group classified as held for sale
at 31 December 2007 and 2006 may also be
categorised as follows. See notes 3.14 and 3.15
for explanations about how the category of financial
instruments affects their subsequent measurement.

(i)

(i)
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Financial assets

BE—ZZLF+-RA=+—HLFE

() EHEE

45, BIEEARE
458 AT cHEER BB ZHE
rEBzeRHEERBE (D

EEBERBEG@E)

HEFIE
HEZHEHNEERBERIN 28R
HER-_ZEZE+FER_TETEF+_-A
=+ —HIFAEEDFELT - RiE3.14
K315 em T A AR A
EHBZFTE R -

2007 2006
—EEtHE —EERE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FET
Cash and cash equivalents HERIESEEY 82,362 39,836
Pledged deposits [ e = 4,892
Available-for-sale financial assets Nt ETREE 853,380 -
Financial assets at fair value AT ER AR 5k
through profit or loss BEeREE 44,178 48,765
Loans and receivables: B WK
Trade and bills receivables }EHQEE TREE 44,052 90,937
Other receivables H b e U 70,678 20,348
114,730 111,285
1,094,650 204,778
Financial liabilities (ii) THEE
2007 2006
—EEtE TEETRF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHxT FHET
Financial liabilities at fair value AT ER AR
through profit or loss BEzEmAE
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA 5,017 -
Financial liabilities measured REHEN A EZ
at amortised cost Ca =N
Trade payables FERTER K 33,497 46,683
Other payables H b FER R 39,706 46,301
Borrowings BE 112,815 171,701
Due to related companies TERNBE A TR 209,311 180,000
395,329 444,685
400,346 444,685
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HILtFE

46. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 46. E€EE
The Group’s capital management objectives are: NEFB7ESTEBRES .
(i)  to ensure the Group’s ability to continue as a going () FERAEBREAFELS
concern;
(i) to provide an adequate return to shareholders; () AREEETEER
(iii)  to support the Group’s sustainable growth; and (i) TEHAEEFELERE &
(iv) to provide capital for the purpose of potential (v) BBEAHMKEBREEES -

mergers and acquisitions.

The Group sets the amount of equity capital in AREBREHBEBUBEEESTRALSE -
proportion to its overall financing structure. The Group REEETBEESHEE  THELKSE R RES
manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to DIEBEEYRBEBIELRE - Ay
it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the WBERER  AEFXSHFBMBREL
risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to ZHEE - ARFEERES  BRITHRIEE
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may BEBIEGR -

adjust the amount dividends paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets
to reduce debts.

The capital-to-overall financing ratio at balance sheet REEH  BNMEEERELERINT -
date was as follows:
2007 2006
—EEtF ZETRF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Capital B
Total equity AR 1,215,766 570,638
Overall financing ERmnE
Borrowings i=n=¢ 112,815 171,701
Due to related companies TEBRENTRR 209,311 180,000
322,126 351,701
Capital-to-overall financing ratio &2 (L ¥ 82 g & b & 3.77 1.63
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For the year ended 31 December 2007

47.

48.

Annual Report 2007

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

The Group’s jointly controlled entity has executed
guarantees amounting to approximately HK$26,596,000
(2006: HK$25,000,000) with respect to bank loans
to the joint venturer (note 23). Under the guarantee,
the Group’s jointly controlled entity shall be liable to
the bank if the bank is unable to recover the loan. At
31 December 2007 and 2006, no provision for the
obligations of the Group’s jointly controlled entity under
the guarantee contract has been made as the directors
consider that it is not probable that the repayments of
the loan will be in default.

In 2006, the 2006 Disposal Group provided guarantees
in favour of certain banks for mortgage loans granted
by the banks to the buyers of the Group’s properties
under development to the extent of approximately
HK$328 million in aggregate. As at 31 December 2006,
mortgage loans in aggregate of approximately HK$265
million were utilised by the buyers of the 2006 Disposal
Group’s properties under development and properties
for sale. No provision for the Group’s obligations under
the guarantee contract was made as the directors
considered that it was not probable that the banks
would exercise the guarantee for repayment of the loans
when they were in default.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in notes 1 and 11, the comparative
figures related to the discontinued operations for the
year ended 31 December 2006 have been re-presented.

—TRLFEH

RE-TTLE-AS+—HILER

47.

48.

BBEREN

AEBEZARAZEFBEERBTRTFTEERE
KB A H#926,596,000/8 TL( —TE/NEF ¢
25,000,000/ 7T ) 2 PEAR (F17E23) < IRIEFZIR
R WRTEXKRDER  AAEEZH
FEEHIEREARRTEE R_TZETLFR
—EEXF+_A=T—HB HREZRAE
BEATAIRETRBITEEEREMT A&
ErHEREHEEBTERERGNEIZE
EVEH B -

RZZTEXEFE ST NFLHEAFAE
FHRTMRZSBEITRAAEERRTYWEZ
BEREEZEBEREHER  ©8EH
328,000,000 T - RZZEZEXNF+ A
=+—H8 ' ##265,000,000/8 T2 IHIBERK
ER_SENFHEHNEERRFEME
ZEREHA - ARESZTRBRITTARATEE
BRAERERZBERTITEEBER - &
AEEZEARZEFEETEREREGOET
ZEEEHEE -

bEBHF

IR EE - BERBE_ZTX
TZA=Z+T " HLEFEERLEEEXH 2L
REFOENZT -
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

IFMBERRE

For the year ended 31 December 2007

BE-TTLE-AS+—HILER

RESULTS e
Year ended 31 December
HET-_A=t-HI4E
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
“EELE | Z2TRF —TTRF —TTIQNF —TE=F
HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER AL THL THL THL
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(B3)) (B3)) (E51) (851)
Continuing operations BESEEK
Revenue WA 576,058 330,774 144,847 108,965 92,563
Cost of sales HEKAK (468,903) (251,462)  (78,713)  (53,368)  (44,997)
Gross profit EZil 107,155 79,312 66,134 55,597 47,566
Other revenue and financial revenue =GN EE e 16,560 11,449 3,755 (526) 9,520
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R SRR (54,708)|  (45602)  (36,259)  (29,054)  (29,691)
Administrative expenses 1THER (65,910)|  (51,906)  (47,308)  (39,078)  (14,369)
Gain/(loss) on fair value changes in BOTEMARFIRERZ
financial assets at fair value SREEATEEY
through profit or loss, net Wiz /(&518) 58 24,629 38,589 13,335 2,214 -
Net surplus/(deficits) on revaluation of RenEstrg/ (58)
investment properties ikl 10,178 22,031 996 - (2,495)
Dividend income from available-for-sale At HESREE ZREWMA
financial assets 48,383 - - - -
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREMEW 22,853 - - - -
Other operating income/(expenses), net  E&LINA /(%) F4E 4,614 3,473 2,594 40,940 (41,286)
Finance costs HHBER (7,157) (2,880) - (3,332) (33)
Write-back of provision for other E{ER Al
receivables B - - - - 16,382
Share of results of associates e =YNTE: 2,212 5,028 - - -
Gain on disposals of subsidiaries HEMB AR - - - 59 -
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETEHANER, (FE) 108,809 59,494 3,207 26,820 (14,406)
Income tax expense FISHiFY (7,168) (7,815) (3,362) (2,458) (661)
Profit/(loss) after income tax from BELEEBRAEHE
continuing operations ikl (EE) 101,641 51,679 (135) 24,362 (15,067)
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For the year ended 31 December 2007 BE_ZT+FE+_A=+—HItFE

RESULTS (continued) EE(E)

Year ended 31 December

BEt-A=1-HLEE
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
—®%tE (“TRNGF -BTHEF -BIMF -BISF
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000
Tz | TET  TET  TEr  TEn
(Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(Z7) (E51) (E7) (E51)

Discontinued operations BRIEEEER
Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations B 4% | H4E 4 %7855/ (E18) 325,566 29,612)  (43,576)  (12,942)  (16,819)

Profit/(loss) for the year REERRN/ (FB) 427,207 22,067 (43,711) 11,417 (31,886)
Attributable to: PAR AR,

Equity holders of the Company AREERREA 427,467 22,347 (43,275) 11,373 (31,994)
Minority interest PEBRRRER (260) (280) (436) 44 108
Profit/(loss) for the year REERRN/ (FB) 427,207 22,067 (43,711) 11,417 (31,886)
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND LEE - AERIEREES

MINORITY INTEREST

As at 31 December
W+=A=1-H
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
ZEELE | 22T —TERF —TTpEE —TT=F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TET THEL THT THEL T

Total assets WAE 1,685,361 | 2,077,710 1,546,256 1,137,547 1,163,703
Total liabilities BEE (469,595) | (1,507,072) (1,066,361)  (636,533)  (667,057)
Minority interest LHRR R (2,392)| (32,703)  (20,877) (2,121) (9,246)

1,213,374 537,935 459,018 498,893 487,400
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL INVESTMENT PROPERTIES J

TEREVEMER

31 December 2007 —ETLFE+-fA=+—H

Description

B1E

Remaining Group:

REBAER

Flat B, 21st Floor, Jolly Villa,

No. 8 Tai Hang Road,

Hong Kong and Car parking space No. 32
on 3rd Floor of the same building
BBAYUESTH T ESL211EB=E

A —EEFRN3E 2 325R E L

Industrial Complex, including Dormitories

In the Sixth Industrial Zone

Houjie Town, Dongguan County
Guangdong Province

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)

PEARAMBE(THE])ERER=mERHE

ERIXRIBGAKRNEB(BEES)

2nd Lower Ground Level

Jin Hua Building

Yan He South Road

Luohu District, Shenzhen
Guangdong Province

The PRC

R ERERYITESRE
N EIRIERER NEZE

Shops at Street Nos. 13, 14 and 15
New City Centre Plaza Garden

Nos. 459, 461 and 463

Xiang Hua Road

Zhuhai City

Guangdong Province

The PRC

HRIERAKET

FHIERRASQ - 461146357

A OIERE - EE138 - 14801655

140

Group interest

B

100%

100%

100%

100%

Use

ke

Residential
F=

Industrial/
Residential

IT% /=

Commercial

[GES

Commercial

[CES

Tenure

F5

Short term
lease

HEEA

Medium term
lease

AR 4

Medium term
lease
RHEATE Y

Medium term
lease

R HRFE A

China Haidian Holdings Limited HEZREBEHR2A T
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